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CORPORATE INFORMATION

2 7 & H
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Mr. Tsui Ming (Chairman)
(appointed on 3rd July 2007)
Mr. Yip Yun Kuen
Mr. Chau Kai Man (appointed on 3rd July 2007)
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Mr. Kwong Kwan Ming
Mr. Shih, Daniel Chia
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
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Mr. Foo Tin Chung
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
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7/F., Tower1, South Seas Centre
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Tsimshatsui East

Kowloon

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRARS AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Butterfield Corporate Services Limited
Rosebank Centre

14 Bermudiana Road
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Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRARS AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN HONG KONG
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Hong Kong
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WEBSITE
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ANNUAL REPORT 2007

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MEAHE

HK$ Million
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GROUP’S PROFIT
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rEBEXSE A& B S BA %E F
Year 2003 - 2007 Year 2003 - 2007
TR =FETTALF TR =FETTLF
700 110
574 583 100 100

600 o0

BN
500 | B ] 80

N B o 70
a0 i B || =4 60

i B N 28 5o
oo f B || S

L || T %
200 | B B 30

B || 20
100 f{ | [ B 10

)

0 2008 2004 2005 2006 2007 0" 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
Year Year
FE FE

GROUP'STURNOVER BY

GROUP'STURNOVER BY
GEOGRAPHICAL AREA PRODUCT RANGE

REmMEBEEE S Z2AEBEXER
for the year ended 31st December 2007
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QHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
F E K&

| am pleased to present the Annual Report of RBI Holdings
Limited (the “"Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
known as the "Group”) to the shareholders of the Company
for the year ended 31st December 2007.

DIVIDENDS

The Board of directors has resolved not to declare either
final dividend (2006: HK 3 cents per share) and interim
dividend (2006: HK 2 cents per share) for the year ended
31st December 2007. But, a special dividend of HK$0.4 per
share has been declared and paid during the year.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

Business Review

The Group's turnover for the year decreased by 4.4% from
HK$550,154,000 to HK$525,902,000 and recorded a profit
attributable to shareholder of HK$19,954,000 (2006:
HK$30,307,000).

2007 was another challenging year to toy industry. The
business environment remained tough with continued cost
pressures. The persistent high raw material cost, labor costs
and Renminbi appreciation adversely affected the result for

the year.

In response to the adverse market condition, the
management adopted a conservative strategy in the current
stage and decided to postpone the construction of phase
two of the Heyuan factory. In regard to the fund originally
set aside for the construction, the management had decided
to distribute to the shareholders of the Company as a special
dividend. The dividend had been paid out on 12th December
2007.
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ANNUAL REPORT 2007

QHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
F E K&

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS (Continued)

Major Event

On 3rd May 2007, the original controlling shareholder of
the Company, Mr. Yip Yun Kuen and his spouse had entered
into a sales and purchase agreement with Lucky Tune Global
Limited (“Lucky Tune”), which was beneficially owned by
Mr. Tsui Ming, pursuant to which Mr. Yip and his spouse
agreed to sell 173,816,820 shares at HK$1.39 per share for
a cash consideration of HK$241,605,379.80 to Lucky Tune.

The transaction was completed on 14th May 2007
Immediately upon the completion of the transaction, Lucky
Tune owned approximately 52.47% of the entire issued
share capital of the Company. Accordingly, Lucky Tune was
required to make an unconditional mandatory cash offer
(the "Offer”) for all the issued shares other than those
already owned by Lucky Tune and its parties in concert
with it under Rule 26.1 of the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers
and Mergers (“Takeovers Code”), and to make a comparable
offer for the outstanding share option under Rule 13 of the

Takeovers Code.

The Offer closed on 3rd July 2007. Lucky Tune had received
valid acceptances in respect of a total of 87,687,082 shares
and 300,000 share option. Immediately upon the close of
the Offer, Lucky Tune and its party in concert were interested
in 261,503,902 shares, representing approximately 78.94%
of the entire issued share capital of the Company.

However, in order to restore the minimum public float
requirement under Rule 8.08 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules"”), Lucky Tune had disposed of
15,000,000 shares of the Company on the market within
the temporary waiver period granted by the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Immediately
upon the disposal, Lucky Tune and its party in concert were
interest in 246,503,902 shares, representing approximately

74.4% of the entire issued share capital of the Company.

EBimks @)

EXEE

RZZEZLFRA=ZH AREIZREZER
Hx%%;&ﬁ%%i&ﬁ@ﬂﬁﬁiwcky Tune
Global Limited ([Lucky Tune) * B8 BA %4
BEn@B)IIVERRE Bt EX4ER
HEBRE LR STI1.39%8 T Lucky TuneH!
# 173,816,820 % 1 2R E B
241,605,379.80/ JT °

THER_EZTLFHA ‘T'EEI?GW o BFER

55K » Lucky TunelE B KA A& E0E 3%
TTREAN#)52.47% = B Itk - Lucky Tune/,ﬁE
BEBARWEREHTA(TKETRI) S
26.11& 5 B Lucky TuneR E—# T8N A L0
BHE RO AINZ FTE B BITIRM IR L &K
sl R e WEER ((REER]) - 1A
AR 15 U =T B 25 1 3R Bk 1M R T RS AR TR
AELBRZ KBRS -

WERERERZ_ZEZELF LA -H&ER -
Lucky TuneB % & & 87,687, OSZHXHX
19 12.300,00010 BE e i 2 B iz iy - BRI
BERERE  Lucky TuneRE—H1TEH A
T #5261,503,902 K H 2 & - EARR
A2 B2 BHITIRAAT78.94% °

AT BMEEEMERZMERARE
EmRA(TLEMEE]) £8.08KME T 2 &
RARFIRE  Lucky TuneE R BB AT
SEBERAT ([HZAT]) B 2 R R H
N5 & 15,000,0000% A X E &4 °
ZREHE% 0 Lucky TuneRE—#H1T78 A+
% A246,503,9020 B 2 #Em - (hA QA
2HEBITRALTA4% °



QHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
F E K&

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS (Continued)

Major Event (Continued)

Meanwhile, upon the close of the Offer on 3rd July 2007,
Mr. Tsui Ming and Mr. Chau Kai Man were appointed as the
executive directors of the Company while Mr. Kwong Kwan
Ming, Mr. Shih, Daniel Chia and Mr. Foo Tin Chung were
appointed as the independent non-executive directors of
the Company. Mr. Tsui Ming was also appointed as the
chairman of the Company. On the same date, the original
directors, Mr. Chan Shun Po, Mr. Yip Yun Tim, Mr. Chan,
Michael Siu Tai, Mr. Yeung Wai Kin, Mr. Man Mo Leung, Mr.
Yap Alfred Donald and Mr. Chan Chu Kwan resigned their
directorships from the Company while Mr. Yip Yun Kuen
remained as the executive director and Chief Executive
Officer (“CEQO") of the Company.

Business Prospects

Looking ahead, it was expected that the toy business would
remain challenging in the foreseeable future. The
implementation of the New Labor Law and revised tax rules,
continued appreciation of Renminbi; as well as getting
stringent custom review will further increase the operating

cost of the factories in China.

To tackle the adverse factors ahead, the Company would
continue the conservative strategy and concentrate on
striving for cost saving. In addition, the management would
put efforts in re-engineering the work flow and simplifying
the organization structure. On the other hand, the
management will keep on aggressively looking for toy
related or other investment opportunities to strike for the

best interest of the shareholders.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL POSITION

As at the year end, the bank balances and cash amounted
to HK$24 million (2006: HK$18 million) while the bank
borrowings amounted to HK$40 million (2006: NIL).
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ANNUAL REPORT 2007

QHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
F E K&

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group’s monetary transactions and deposits continued
to be in the form of US dollars, Renminbi and HK dollars.
The Group adopted conservative treasury policy and did

not enter into any derivatives products during the year.

CHARGE ON ASSET

As at 31st December, 2007, leasehold land and buildings
with carrying value of HK$22,045,000 were pledged to
secure banking facilities of HK$40,000,000 which were fully

drawn down as at 31st December, 2007.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31st December 2007, information on
sales and purchases relating to the major customers and

suppliers is summarized as follows:

B3 BUR

AEBEZEBXFRIFHREEUNEZT - AR
BRATLEE - AEBERONBEVBHE -
WERANFRETLEAOTEER °

EEEH
RZEZLF+_A=+—H EEEAS
22,045,000 Ttz tHM R MED FTEH - E
AIRITRVE 840,000,000/ 70 7 K 1F - A =
EELF+-_A=+—H ZtEE2HIR
HY o

FTREFRHAER

BE-TE+&+-A=+-BILEE &
WEEESROEE s HEREEEH T
mE

2007 2006
—EELF —ZEERF
Sales (Percentage over total sales) HE (HRHEET D)

The largest customer BRAEF 6% 9%
Five largest customers AREF 23% 31%

Purchases (Percentage over total purchases) R ((h4RBEF D L)
The largest supplier = A ER 15% 10%
Five largest suppliers ARHER 43% 34%

Branford Limited, holding more than 5% of the Company's
issued share capital (Please refer to section of substantial
shareholders for details) was one of the five largest

customers.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors of the
Company, their associates, or any shareholder which to the
knowledge of the directors of the Company owns more
than 5% of the Company's issued share capital had a
beneficial interest in any of the Group's five largest
customers or five largest suppliers for the year ended 31st
December 2007

Brandford Limited# B A2 &) #B i85 % & 1T
PEA (FEBENTERELD) » HEARF
B —fy o

FRIA LB BE_ZBELF+-R=+
—HLEFE ARARZEF - HEZHEA
THBEARREZMAEE AR RHITRA
5N EZBRRUERELAEBOLAREP K
TRHEER 2 BERERS °



QHAIRI\/IAN’S STATEMENT
F E K&

PERSONNEL

The average number of employees of the Group during the
year was approximately 4,900 (2006: 5,800) of whom 730
(2006: 770) were office administration staff. Bonuses are
awarded based on individual performance and overall group
performance, and are made available to certain employees

of the Group.

APPRECIATION

I ' would like to thank my fellow directors, shareholders and
business associates for their continued support, and to all
our staff for their hard work and dedications in the past

year.

Tsui Ming

Chairman

23rd April 2008
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ANNUAL REPORT 2007

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EFEHRT

The directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31st December 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Group's turnover and operating profit were derived

principally from the design, manufacture and sales of toys.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s turnover by products and
geographical location is set out in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December
2007 and the state of the Group's affairs as at that date are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages
32 to 127

The Board of directors has resolved not to declare either
final dividend (2006: HK 3 cents per share) and interim
dividend (2006: HK 2 cents per share) for the year ended
31st December 2007. But, a special dividend of HK$0.4 per
share has been declared during the year.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company's share capital during
the year are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial

statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company's
listed securities. In addition, the Company has not redeemed

any of its listed securities during the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EFEHRT

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 21st
December 1995 which expired on 20th December 2005.
On 2nd January 2002, share option to subscribe 5,100,000
shares of which 100,000 had lapsed, were granted at no
consideration to certain eligible employees, including
directors of the Company. Share options to subscribe for
4,400,000 shares and 300,000 shares were exercised in
2004 and 2007 respectively. In regard to the remaining share
options to subscribe for 300,000 shares were disposed to
the Offeror during the Offer Period.

Pursuant to a resolution passed on 28th August 2007, the
Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “"New
Share Option Scheme”) relating to the grant of share options
to directors, employees and other participants including
consultants, advisers, suppliers and customers of the

Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”).

The New Share Option Scheme will enable the Group to
offer valuable incentive to attract and retain quality personnel
and other persons to work for the Group so as to increase
the value of the shares of the Company. To this end, the
Directors may specify the minimum period, if any, for which
an option must be held or the performance targets, if any,

that must be achieved before the option can be exercised.

Share options may be granted without any initial payment
for the share options at an exercise price (subject to
adjustments as provided therein) equal to the highest of (i)
the nominal value of the shares; (ii) the closing price per
share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the date of the grant of the share option; and (iii)
the average closing price per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of the grant of the
share option.
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ANNUAL REPORT 2007

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EFEHRT

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
the exercise of all options to be granted under the New
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s)
of the Company shall not exceed 10 per cent of the share
capital of the Company in issue on 28th August 2007, the
date of adoption of the New Share Option Scheme, unless
a refresh approval of the shareholders is obtained. As at
the date of this annual report, the total number of shares
available for issue under the New Share Option Scheme is
33,126,000, which represents 10% of the issued share

capital of the Company as at the date of this annual report.

The maximum number of the shares (issued and to be
issued) in respect of which share options may be granted
under the New Share Option Scheme to any one grantee in
any 12-month period shall not exceed 1 per cent of the
share capital of the Company in issue on the last date of
such 12-month period unless approval of the shareholders
of the Company has been obtained in accordance with the

Listing Rules.

The New Share Option Scheme was approved by the
shareholders of the Company on 28th August 2007 and has
a life of 10 years until 27th August 2017

No share options under the New Share Option Scheme
were outstanding at the beginning or at the end of the
financial year, and no share options under the New Share
Option Scheme were granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed

during the financial year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EFEHRT

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity of the consolidated financial statements set out on

page 37

In the opinion of directors, the Company'’s reserves available
for distribution to shareholders at 31st December 2007 were

as below:

it
AEEZ BEREN 2 EDERRRFIE
GAMBRETEAMBEEDEN -

BERA KNATIN2007E12A83 181 # 5
RTRRERAEENT -

2007 2006
—EFLFE —TIAF

HK$000 HK$'000

FET F#ET

Contributed surplus BEHMAH 100,635 100,635
Retained profits B 17 7 6,615 39,602
107,250 140,237

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
excess of the carrying value of the subsidiaries acquired
over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued
which, under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), is available for distribution to the shareholders
of the Company. However, the Company cannot declare or
pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed

surplus if

(i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its

liabilities as they become due; or

(i) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be
less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued

share capital and share premium account.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EFEHRT

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’'s bye-laws although there is no statutory
restriction against such rights under the laws in Bermuda.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
and investment properties of the Group during the year are
set out in notes 14 and 16 to the consolidated financial

statements respectively.

BORROWINGS AND INTEREST
CAPITALISED

The Group had HK$40 million borrowings outstanding at
the balance sheet date. No interest was capitalised by the

Group during the year.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group did not make any charitable
donations.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries at 31st
December 2007 are set out in note 18 to the consolidated

financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A five year financial summary is shown on page 128.

BrRBEER
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EFEHRT

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the financial year 2007
and up to the date of this report were:

Mr. Tsui Ming (appointed on 3rd July 2007)

Mr. Yip Yun Kuen

Mr. Chau Kai Man (appointed on 3rd July 2007)

Mr. Yip Yun Tim (resigned on 3rd July 2007)

Mr. Chan Shun Po (resigned on 3rd July 2007)

Mr. Chan, Michael Siu Tai (resigned on 3rd July 2007)
Mr. Yeung Wai Kin* (resigned on 3rd July 2007)

Mr. Man Mo Leung* (resigned on 3rd July 2007)

Mr. Yap Alfred Donald, J.P# (resigned on 3rd July 2007)

Mr. Chan Chu Kwan* (resigned on 3rd July 2007)

Mr. Kwong Kwan Ming* (appointed on 3rd July 2007)
Mr. Shih, Daniel Chia* (appointed on 3rd July 2007)
Mr. Foo Tin Chung* (appointed on 3rd July 2007)

* Non-executive directors

# Independent non-executive directors

In accordance with the Company's bye-laws, Mr. Tsui Ming,
Mr. Chau Kai Man and Mr. Kwong Kwan Ming shall retire at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election. Mr. Shih, Daniel Chia and
Mr. Foo Tin Chung, due to personal reasons, they shall not
offer themselves for re-relectoin as directors and resign
from the board with effect from 1st May 2008. They have
also confirmed that they have no disagreement with the
Board and there are no matters in relation to resignation
that needs to be brought to the attentions of the
shareholders of the Company or the Stock Exchange of

Hong Kong Limited.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EFEHRT

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SHARES

The beneficial interests of the directors of the Company
and their associates in the shares of the Company and its
associated corporations at 31st December 2007 within the
meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFQ") as recorded in the register maintained under Section
352 of the SFO, and their interests in the share options of
the Company at that date, are as follows:

Long Position in Shares and Underlying Shares of the

EEzROER

RZZZLF+_A=+—8 REFHFK
HEEA ([BrRBMERD]) E36216 R E
FEZECEMACH ZES @ REE2H
BAIRARFARERB AR 2 BERER -
RARBZERENE B 2 #amm T

FEAQXANGRERO REER G

Company
Number of
underlying
shares under
derivatives
equity (share Percentage
Interest of option) of issued
controlled RETE share
Name of Personal Family corporation I EFAMH Total capital
directors interest interest P HERD interests HBTRA
BEEnE BAES RERES EEER (BRE) EHRER Bt
(%)
Mr. Tsui Ming — — 234,771,902 — 234,771,902 70.87
wEA % &
Mr. Yip Yun Kuen 150,000 — — — 150,000 0.05

EEL: Fidis

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not be notified
by any person who had interests or short positions in the

shares or underlying shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above and for shares in certain
subsidiaries held by directors in trust for their immediate
holding companies, at 31st December 2007, none of the
directors and chief executive of the Company, or any of
their associates, had any interests in the equity or debt
securities of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as defined in the SFO Ordinance, and none of
the directors and chief executives of the Company, or their
spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right to
subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had

exercised any such right during the year.

B EXXPRRBEE SN - AR A BE B A
TR R A AT A A B OA B & B fn A

> e A
KB o

R EXPREBEEAREZUEELARET
MBARCEREBRARMTEZEMER
AZBMIN RRBBZEEREIETHA
BoREBEAL BER-_FTTLF+-
A=+—BEAXRAFHEEMFMBEERE (IR
BEFRPEGRIZER) ZBRARERE
FHEERTE - R LEARREMNES
REZBITBAY  HEEBHRBTN\ERT
2 EREMRBBEARARRESZENINE
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EFEHRT

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the Share Options Scheme section
stated above, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the

Company or any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance concerning the management
or administration of the whole or any substantial part of
any business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the employing company within one year without the
payment of compensation (other than statutory

compensation).

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Details of the Group's retirement scheme are shown in

note 3.17 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group's retirement scheme contributions charged to
the consolidated income statement for the year amounted
to approximately HK$4,537,000.

BEENERENRE

RAFEEEBRER » NABHE MM
BARAME YEARRESTERAHEM
BABANBEZEEAHN -

BEROBESF2ZH

B b XX [RERR#E AT &1 B0 MBS - MFERIE
] B PR AN 2 ) s E R ] Y /B8 A Bl SR 2 B AT
VEMEMZY  BEARAREFAIEAEE
ARBHEMEMEABEZ R HEHN
N & e

EERBRBEHN

FRALET LR FEBBANR R 2R
TEFDEB2EREERTHED °

BREZENSBETIRRBFASEEZE
FHEARAHEAMMME R BB LAE
fHE CAERERIN TAR—FAKIEZR
BEK -

BikEEHE
REENBRKHEFELGAMBRENME
3.17 °
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHRT

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERR

At 31st December 2007 the following shareholders were R_-ZEZ+&+_A=+—H REZFLHRX
interested in 5 per cent or more of the issued share capital HIEKHIEIBER T ZLELTM L HE
of the Company according to the register of interest required AR R E#EITRAE% 8L A FE 2 RER

E to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO: g0
o
i
ﬂ% Long Positions in the Shares of the Company BEXRDATANEFERSG
ﬁﬁ
(| Percentage of
a issued share capital
% Name of shareholder Note Capacity Number of shares HERTRA
2 BREEE Wiz BEIE BRAHE Bt
Z
5 (%)
o
T
g Mr. Tsui Ming 1 Interest of controlled 234,771,902 70.87
RALE corporation
% FiEGIERE 2 =
o
o
':\H'rl, Lucky Tune Global Limited 1 Beneficial owner 234,771,902 70.87
o EHETA
S
3 Ms. Kwong Yat Man 2 Family Interest 234,771,902 70.87
'—
S B+ EN-Fikn
i
o
-
= Arisaig Greater China Fund 3 Beneficial owner 16,608,000 5.01
2 RiHEAA
Branford Limited Beneficial owner 17,023,600 5.14
ExlAEA
Notes: Bt -
1. Please also refers to the section of Major Event. 1. B2HEARFHEING -
2. Ms. Kwong Yat Man is the spouse of Mr. Tsui Ming. 2. BRBZITAGBELEZRB-

3. Arisaig Greater China Fund through its investment manager 3.  Arisaig Greater China Fundi® 8 H 1% & #&
Arisaig Partner (Mauritius) Limited owns 16,608,000 shares I Arisaig Partner (Mauritius) Limited#% &
of the Company. ZK/X @) 16,608,0000% A% 2= -
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EFEHRT

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been
notified of any other interests representing 5% or more of
the Company's issued share capital or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company as at 31st
December 2007

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information on the Company’'s corporate governance
practices is set out in the “Corporate Governance Report”
from pages 21 to 25.

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF THE
COMPANY

The Company had adopted its code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting
than the required standard set out in the Model Code as
then in force, and after having made specific enquiry to all
directors of the Company, the directors of the Company
are satisfied that the required standard set out in the Model
Code and its code of conduct regarding directors’ securities

transactions has been fully complied with.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an audit committee which was established
in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the
purpose of reviewing and providing supervision over the
Group's financial reporting process and internal controls.
The audit committee comprises three independent non-

executive directors.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and with the knowledge of the Directors, as at
the date of this report, there is sufficient public float of not
less than 25% of the Company's issued shares as required

under the Listing Rules.
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EFEHRT

AUDITORS

Grant Thornton was appointed by the directors to conduct
audit on the financial statements of the Company for the
years ended 2006 and 2007. Previously, the financial
statements of the Company were audited by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu. A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming
annual general meeting to re-appoint Grant Thornton as

auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the board

Tsui Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23rd April 2008
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ERERHE

The Board of directors (the “Board"”) is charged with
providing effective and responsible leadership for the
Company. The directors, individually and collectively, must
act in good faith in the best interests of the Company and
its shareholders.

The Board has appointed the following Committee to
oversee different areas of the Company’'s affairs. The
composition of the Board and the Committee are given
below and their respective responsibilities are discussed

later in this report.

At 31st December 2007 the members of the Board and the

Committee are as follows:

Exe([EFg ) aEARARAREARR
BEEZRE - EELARBR REARFTALT
FUARAREBRRZZEMNZREE

EXECRENTREEEEARRTRE
B2E% EFTEREZTLZEGZREHNT
X MESBZBESNARE N Xm -

R-ZEZ+EFE+_A=1+—"HH EFgh&
FEEZKEWNT :

Audit Remuneration

Committee Committee
EREEE FMEES
Board of Directors EEg
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Tsui Ming (Chairman)® RS E (FE)®
Mr. Yip Yun Kuen EHELE
Mr. Chau Kai Man® BRI L&
Independent Non Executive Directors BIKHTES
Mr. Kwong Kwan Ming® BB IR AR SL e v v
Mr. Shih, Daniel Chia® AREFLEC v/ v/
Mr. Foo Tin Chung® BRBEES v v/

@ appointed on 3rd July 2007
* appointed as the chairman of the Committee

The Board sets the Group's objectives and strategies and
monitors its performance. The Board also decides on matters
such as annual and interim results, major transactions,
director appointments, and dividend and accounting policies.
The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility of
managing and overseeing the Group’s day to day operations
to the Executive Directors of the Company and respective

directors of principal subsidiaries of the Group.

The Company had received annual confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive directors as regards their
independence to the Company and considers that each of
the independent non-executive directors is independent to

the Company.

CR-IEELFLA-ZREZRME
*REEIRZEG LR

EFEREAKEHEZEERRE  TEEH
KR -EFENSHARFRERTHERE -
EXH EBEFERE URKRERGHBE
EFHRE - EZEREEREEAEEAR
REZENNEERETARBNTEER
AEEBTZEMBRARISRBZES

ARRCDERESBUNFNTESEREBEY
RARBZFERR - YR BEBILIERIT
BEEOBINARA -

=)
=
T
o
S}
o
=z
o)
wn
=
=
_|
m
o

BETHEBEET

£00Z LHOd3H TVNNNY

HEE3EEC



[
44
=
i
#
ﬁﬁ
a
i
=
=
-
w
5]
=
a
-
o
T
o
oc

ZZ L FFIR

ANNUAL REPORT 2007

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERERHE

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in setting the
agenda of Board Meetings and each Director is invited to
present any businesses that they wish to discuss or propose
at the meetings. All Directors have timely access to all
relevant information of the meetings and may take

professional advice if necessary.

The Board held 8 full Board meetings for the year ended
31st December 2007. Attendances of the full Board meetings

are as follows:

Mr. Tsui Ming (Chairman)® AL E (EE)e

Mr. Yip Yun Kuen EEELE

Mr. Chau Kai Man® BRI A&
Mr. Kwong Kwan Ming® [ ¥ BR S e
Mr. Shih, Daniel Chia® ARBERES
Mr. Foo Tin Chung® HERBEES

@ appointed on 3rd July 2007

The full Board participates in the selection and approval of
new directors and therefore has not established a
Nomination Committee. The Board takes into consideration
criteria such as expertise, experience, integrity and

commitment when selecting new directors.

Non-executive directors have been appointed for a non-
specific term, which is subject to re-election. Under the
Bye-Laws of the Company, with the exception of the
Chairman, all the Directors are currently required to offer
themselves for re-election by rotation at least once every
three years. All directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy
should be subject to election at the first general meeting

after their appointment.

NRAMEBDHEFREETEER LG5 3
BMSEFHERARIEMNREHRNE
ERwmEIREE22EER - 2REFHAIAEN
BRAEEHREZZEN  MARFTERHSR
EXER -

REBE_TTLF+_A=+—RHLFE "
EESCRTREREFTEES - 28E
EEERI LR LBEMT ¢

No. of meetings attended

HEE BRI

6/8
7/8
6/8
1/8
1/8
2/8

CR-IZETLELAZREERE

AREBEFEHE2HEIERMENTE
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EREBARSEIELEE -

FATEFYERELY  BABREE -
REARRR ZARMA - BREREI - 28E
EHRRAZVBFHAET —RESE -
BEREMBRREZRMEZEZESTEERS
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee was established to review the Group's
financial reporting, internal controls and corporate
governance issues and make relevant recommendations to
the Board. The audit committee comprises of three
independent non-executive directors. The committee
members possess appropriate professional qualifications,
accounting or related financial management expertise as
required under the Listing Rules. Please refer to biography
section of directors for further details of the committee

members.

The audit committee may elect to ask its external auditors
to attend its meetings. During the year, the audit committee
has met with the external auditors with no executive
directors present.

Mr. Kwong Kwan Ming (Chairman) BB AR 5 (E /)

Mr. Shih, Daniel Chia ARERE
Mr. Foo Tin Chung BRALEE

Note: All committee members are appoined on 3rd July 2007.

AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

The following remuneration was paid by the Group to its
principal auditor, Grant Thornton, and its affiliated firms:

EREES
ERZEERLNERNAEE 2P K E
W AMBEERLEERER  UHEES
RHEHEESZ FZZESBRFE=RBE LI
BITES -ZEENERELTRAMBE
ZHEEHREERNE  gStAEMBERERE
M- ZEENECE—FHEAL2HES
BRE—Ef o

EBERZZ B g EEZRIMNEZEE T FEEZ
ZEgeE  NAFE BERZE=CHN
EZEBMBETHTESISLE2EH -

No. of meetings attended

HEE B

0/2
1/2
1/2

T REEERER-ZETLFLA=HEZT-

BB 2 &

REFECREEFEZZEAMEE ST
BEARSNUATES -

2007 2006

—EEtLHF TEEREF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Statutory audit and interim review ETEBEZEPEER 770 640
Taxation services 754 1% B 7% 47 45
Others Hith 456 205

1,273 890
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V= &1

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was established to review the
remuneration of directors and the Group's salary policy. All
members are independent non-executive directors. To
minimize any conflict of interest, any member who is
interested in any given proposed motion is required to

abstain from voting on such motion.

Mr. Kwong Kwan Ming (Chairman) BB BA 5 (E /)

Mr. Shih, Daniel Chia ARERE
Mr. Foo Tin Chung BRAEE

Note: All Committee members are appointed on 3rd July 2007
The meeting held during the year was participated by Mr.
Yip Yun Kuen, Mr. Yeung Wai Kin and Mr. Chan Chu Kwan.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has an overall responsibility for maintaining a
sound and effective internal control system (the “System"”)
of the Group. The System is designed not only to achieve
the Group's objectives with facilitating an effective and
efficient business operation to ensure a reliable financial
reporting and compliance with applicable rules and
regulations, but also to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance on preventing material misstatement or loss as
well as managing and minimizing risks of failure in

operational system.

The Board should at least annually conduct a review on the
effectiveness of the System including all relevant financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management

functions.

The Directors, through the Audit Committee and the internal
audit department, have continued to review the
effectiveness of the Group's system of financial and non-
financial controls. The system of internal control is designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss. Controls are monitored by management review and

by a programme of internal audits.

FHWEES

FMEEERINEHNESTHE RAKEH
MK - MEXKBBEBUIFNTESE - B
BHRERBRERRE - EAIKEOMRAIER

ZEBmTHEERD  MARZEBBENER

No. of meetings attended

HEE B

0/1
0/1
0/1

it ZESZERZTTLFLA-HEZA -
RNEERTZEE  SHEBRLE  BE
BAEERRFEREESENY -

A B 122 I

EES R EARSEREMABRZ NEPE
TR (TRE]) - WEREEBBREBN
RaMz¥5EE BRAUSZZHBERER
BRETSZEERZEZEEANEREEE
T RANTEERHESE (BFRH)RE
AT HEBRRERAMKIBR - A IR B K2R
BREEZERXRRLAENRAR -

EXeAELBFUZAR (BREMBHERE
M 2ERARBEVRRAREENRE)
BREETT —RmES -

EXE-HEBBERZBEERAERIENI®
AASRENERFVBEERREEAR
NEEIE RS E EE R M T HR RBEEX
EHBEENRAR YA RHEGEEFBYHN
BEAHRRAKBERE - ERERHE
BABRSMBEBANRRBEFETEE -
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COMPLIANCE WITHTHE CODE OF BEST
PRACTICE

The Company has complied with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the "Code") as set out in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31st
December 2007, with deviations from code provisions A2.1
of the Code.

Code Provision A2.1

Under the code provision A2.1, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer ("CEQ") should be separated and

should not be performed by the same individual.

Upon the close of the unconditional cash offers by Lucky
Tune to shareholders of the Company on 3rd July 2007, Mr.
Tsui Ming was appointed to replace Mr. Yip Yun Kuen as
the chairman of the Company, and Mr. Yip Yun Kuen
remained as the CEO of the Company. The roles of chairman

and CEO were separated thereafter.

BFREERASTEH

REBE_TTLF+_A=+—"RHLFE "
ARR—EHETEMHRAME Az
EERBHRTA(TAL) - HERBET R Z T
AR A2.1 »

<F AR STA2.1

REBETRNEA2.1 - EFEITEAE ([T
mE) cABRERD  XTEH— ARE
FAE -

Lucky Tunef AR RIER T +F L A
“HELEzA B EERERSWEE - KA
EEREZEREARRER - MEBELER
BEBARDRIZITHEE - EFETHRER
2B E Mo F oo
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFREREENERBE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tsui Ming, aged 51, is the chairman of the Company,
has years of working experience in the toy manufacturing
business. He headed the production department of a toy
manufacturing company for more than eight years, where
he was responsible for overseeing and managing staff,
production schedule and cost control. Mr. Tsui is responsible

for the Group's strategic development.

Mr.Yip Yun Kuen, aged 58, is the managing director of the
Company. He is the co-founder of the Group and has more
than 30 years’ experience in the toy industry. He holds a
Master Degree in Science and is a member of The Institution
of Engineering and Technology (UK) and a Industrial Fellow
(2004-2006) of the University of Warwick (UK). Mr. Yip is
responsible for the overall supervision of the design,
manufacturing and marketing functions. He is also
responsible for overseeing the Group’'s business operations
and strategic development. Mr. Yip is the ex-president of
The Toys Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong.

Mr. Chau Kai Man, aged 51, is responsible for overseeing
the Group's business operations and strategic development.
Mr. Chau has over 20 years' experience in sales and
marketing and around eight years' experience in company
secretarial matters. Prior to joining the Group, he worked
as a sales director of a textile company. Mr. Chau joined
the Group in 2007.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFREREENERBE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Kwong Kwan Ming, aged 57 obtained a diploma in
business management awarded jointly by the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and Hong Kong Management
Association. Mr. Kwong is enthusiastically dedicated in
community service, and was commended by the Secretary
for Home Affairs for his outstanding contributions to the
promotion of community building. He has been appointed
as the Fire Safety Ambassador Trainer by the Director of
Fire Services, committee member of the Shatin District
Fight Crime Advisory Committee and committee member
of the Shatin District Clean Hong Kong Committee, both by
the Director of Home Affairs. Mr. Kwong had about 10 years’
experience in management of a catering and entertainment
company. He currently operates a consultant company
providing consultancy services in relation to human

resources.

Mr. Shih Daniel, Chia, aged 33, has extensive experience
in advising multi-national companies on corporate finance
and mergers and acquisitions. Mr. Shih holds a Bachelor of
Arts degree in Economics from the University of Southern
California, and obtained his Juris Doctor degree from the
Washington College of Law, American University. He was
admitted as a licensed attorney-at-law of the State of New
York and New Jersey. Mr. Shih has been an associate of
one of the largest international law firms in Hong Kong in
the Commercial and Securities Group since 2005. Between
2003 and 2005, Mr. Shih acted as the corporate counsel
for Nortel Networks Corp, a company listed on the New
York Stock Exchange, in providing legal support to Nortel
Networks Corp’s operations in the Greater China region.
Mr. Shih is currently the legal advisor for the Asia operations
of Air Products and Chemicals, Inc., a Company listed on
the New York Stock Exchange.
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ANNUAL REPORT 2007

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFREREENERBE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. FooTin Chung, aged 39, has over 10 years' experience
in the finance and accounting fields. Mr. Foo holds a
Bachelor Degree in accounting and information system in
the University of New South Wales in Australia and a master
degree in business administration in Australia Graduate
School of Management. He is a member of the Australia
Society of Certified Practising Accountants and an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He held management position at subsidiaries
of listed companies in Hong Kong, and was an auditor of
an international audit firm. Mr. Foo is currently the executive
director, financial controller, qualified accountant, company
secretary and compliance officer of Jinheng Automotive
Safety Technology Holdings Limited, a company listed on
the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange. Mr.
Foo also serves as an independent non-executive director
of Shandong Luoxin Pharmacy Stock Company Limited, a
company listed in the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yip Yun Tim, aged 54, is a brother of Mr. Yip Yun Kuen
and is responsible for sales and marketing in the European
and Asian markets and supervision of manufacturing
function. He has around 30 years experience in sales and

marketing. He joined the Group in 1987

Mr. Lee Kin Fai, aged 35, is the financial controller and
company secretary of the Company. Mr. Lee is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and an associate member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He holds a Master
degree in Business Administration from the University of
Manchester, UK. Prior to joining the Company, he worked
in a Listed Company on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and an international accounting firm. He has more
than 10 years’ experience in accounting, audit and taxation
field. Mr. Lee joined the Group in 2004.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFREREENERBE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Mr. Chan, Michael Siu Tai, aged 43, is a brotherin-law of
Mr. Yip Yun Kuen, is responsible for sales and marketing
and supervision of manufacturing function. Mr. Chan holds
a Bachelor Degree in Business Administration in California
State University, Sacramento. He has over 15 years’

experience in the toy industry. He joined the Group in 1991.

Mr. Chan Foo Piu, aged 59, is the factory manager of
factories in Shenzhen. Mr. Chan has around 30 years’

experience in toy factory management.

Mr. Lee Man Cheung, aged 58, is the factory manager of
factories in Dongguan. He has around 30 years' experience
in toy factory management.
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ANNUAL REPORT 2007

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS” REPORT

B %A

o Grant Thornton
&g

To the members of RBI Holdings Limited
ABREBEERQA

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
RBI Holdings Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 32
to 127, which comprise the consolidated and company
balance sheets as at 31st December 2007, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that

BARKERRAF
(RERZTIMAELLZHRAR])
2EERR

AZBEITEEZIN N EI2ZAEEF 1278
ZABREEBRAB([ERF]) 2Ha MK
BR - MM BEREER-_ZTLEF+ A
=t -BIZEERRAREERABREBEZ
BLEFEZGEARER  SREBREPIRN
FERERERK  URFEEFBERME
R B A P E AR AE -

EERMBBRRZ2EE

BERRERARBEEEGHMASHMZE
BB REENRIZREE RGO RE
RE BERBEIEBEQAFHE2IHBR
= WMETERER B RERFEFRT
BEERVH2I B RRAMZARREEE
M BHRE T FERRFHERMEHZ
EXBERRL : EERNEREE 28K
R URBRBERMMEHAEZ G5HAE -

BB 2 B 1E

ARBET L RERRBES I ER  HR
EHBWRIELER  LERERE—AN
—FRAEBOK  EREAEREES
& BRUEZSRBETABEL MR - &
1777 55 95 45 PO 2 I 2L oA e it
B A BT -

AL IRET 1T B R BR B0 B 3B A R B R 2
ERBIEARTRLI A - RERABHR
AIRET T TR LB RATE



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’

B %A

REPORT

we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31st December 2007 and of the
Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Grant Thornton

Certified Public Accountants
13th Floor, Gloucester Tower
The Landmark

15 Queen’'s Road Central
Hong Kong

23rd April 2008
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
A B Wk 7

ZELEFR kml HOLDINGS LIMITED A #&@EAERAF

ANNUAL REPORT 2007

For the year ended 31st December 2007

RE-FETtF+-A=+—AIL4E

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-—BA=1+—HLEE

2007 2006
—EELHF —ZTTREF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
o aF FET FAET
Revenue N 5 525,902 550,154
Cost of sales 3H B B AR (416,246) (420,640)
Gross profit EF 109,656 129,514
Valuation surplus/(deficit) on KEYFEEEBEEE
investment properties /OB E) 2,242 (600)
Other income H g A 6 8,209 5,106
Selling and distribution costs 2 & (32,629) (34,347)
Administrative expenses THE R (68,769) (66,636)
Finance costs 9% & A 7 (1,068) (783)
Profit before income tax FF 15 %1 A1l & 1 8 17,641 32,254
Income tax credit/(expense) FriE s A/ (B ) 10 2,313 (1,947)
Profit for the year attributable % BRFE A & s
to shareholders 11 19,954 30,307
Dividends fz 8 12 132,503 16,548
HK cents HK cents
B B
Earnings per share BiEH -
Basic BN 13 6.0 9.1
Diluted e 13 N/A FiE N/A 73




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
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33

At 31st December 2007

R_ZZT+E+_H=+—H

At 31 December

R+=-—A=+—H
2007 2006
—ETLHE ZETRF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ikza FET FAETT
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - REREE 14 188,339 189,927
Prepaid lease payments for land M LEE 15 43,780 43,145
Investment properties WEMZE 16 — 10,300
Held-to-maturity investments BFEZHHBA ZKE 17 — 43,522
Investment in certificates GEREKRE
of deposits 19 — 26,794
Deferred tax assets BIETRIE A E 29 9,954 4,596
242,073 318,284
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 21 160,711 165,554
Held-to-maturity investments BHEZHEHA 2EE 17 — 8,648
Held for trading investments BBHEZXS5KE 20 — 236
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H b e W R IE 22 54,012 56,184
Bills receivable JE U = 1% 23 6,022 11,767
Prepaid lease payments for land i‘gﬁiﬂﬂfﬂﬁ 15 1,014 993
Deposits and prepayments % %&ﬁﬁ 4,903 3,847
Bank balances and cash RIT4 T&fﬁé 24 24,038 17,772
\ 250,700 265,001
Non-current assets classified BELEZERDEE
as held for sale 25 12,542 —
263,242 265,001
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 K& H b e~ 5RIE 26 28,655 40,373
Deposits and accruals 7o MEFE R 37,892 35,576
Borrowings EE 27 3,297 =
Tax payable JE S 718 1,231 591
71,075 76,540
Net current assets REBEEFHE 192,167 188,461
Total assets less current liabilities ZEZAERABEE 434,240 506,745
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Borrowings BE 27 36,703 —
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFRIAEE 29 2,147 2,786
38,850 2,786
Net assets EEFH 395,390 503,959
Equity =Y
Share capital % 7 28 33,126 33,096
Share premium and reserves 1% 0 (B & & 362,264 470,863
Total equity BAREE 395,390 503,959
Tsui Ming Chau Kai Man
% JA R
Director Director
EF 2

HHFEE = L00C LHOLIH TVNNNY (E\Y/Eﬂ%ﬁiﬁl‘i A3LINIT SONIATOH 184
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BALANCE SHEET

EEEMRXK

ZELEFR kﬂsl HOLDINGS LIMITED A #&@EAERAF

ANNUAL REPORT 2007

At 31st December 2007

R_EZEL+F+_A=+—H

2007 2006
—EELHF —ETEER
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
N3 FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHEE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR 2 &E 18 107,146 107,146
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE W BfY /B & B 5k IR 18 135,322 168,300
Deposits and prepayments e kBENRE 81 398
Tax recoverable Al R @] £ 18 203 —
Other receivables H {th & U 92 —
Bank balances and cash RTEFERS 79 17
135,777 168,715
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables 5 REMENK 90 175
Tax payable FE FE I8 - 196
90 371
Net current assets REBEEFE 135,687 168,344
Total assets less current liabilities ZBEAEBRRABEE 242,833 275,490
Equity =Y
Share capital fig A 28 33,126 33,096
Reserves f# 30 209,707 242,394
Total equity BB 242,833 275,490
Tsui Ming Chau Kai Man
%8 B X
Director Director
EFE 2



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
=AW

35

For the year ended 31st December 2007

RE-FTLF+-A=+—AIL4E

2007 2006
—EELHF —EETRX
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
K o FETT FET
Cash flow from operating activities EEZ£KHELRE
Profit before income tax 5 B 4 A 17,641 32,254
Adjustment for: FHE
Interest expense FE X H 7 1,068 783
Interest income F B U A 6 (452) (332)
Interest yield on held-to- REZEBHAEKE
maturity investments F B WA 6 (2,065) (2,481)
Amortisation of prepaid lease TEfJ = Ho7E & 2 45
payments for land 1,014 992
Depreciation of property, M - K5
plant and equipment LEETE 26,992 26,040
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of HEWE - BE
property, plant and equipment R&Ez A BB (257) 371
Allowance for doubtful debts IR 1,185 1,535
Provision for slow moving W iETE B
inventories 8,273 1,729
Fair value gain on held for RETEZ AT EEBEEE
trading investments — (196)
Net realised gain on held for HERBZRZGKE
trading investments 2 W as TR (188) (89)
Net realised loss on held-to- HERBZEDH
maturity investments KEEBIRFRE 978 —
Net realised gain on investment HEFRBERE
in certificate of deposits W% F 5 (1,086) —
Valuation (surplus)/deficit on KEWMFEZEE
investment properties (E) RE (2,242) 600
Operating profit before working EBEESEBH
capital changes 50,861 61,206
Increase in inventories ER=g: Wil (3,430) (27.302)
Decrease/(Increase) in trade B 5 & H b fE R IB
and other receivables B (35 n) 4 (8,566)
Decrease/(Increase) in FEW =R A (38 hn)
bills receivable 5,745 (486)
(Increase)/Decrease in Ze REMNRIE
deposits and prepayments (3m) A (1,056) 1,110
(Decrease)/Increase in trade B 5 & H b & 508
and other payables CR ) /8 an (11,718) 6,118
Increase/(Decrease) in e RETER
deposits and accruals # 0, Gt 2) 2,316 (2,016)
Cash generated from operations KETFEEZRE 42,722 30,064
Income tax paid B HIE (2,617) (988)
Interest paid =ENERS (1,068) (783)
Net cash generated from REEBEECHSTE
operating activities 39,037 28,293

HHFEE = L00C LHOLIH TVNNNY (E\Y/Eﬂ%ﬁiﬁl‘i A3LINIT SONIATOH 184
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
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ZELEFR k?BI HOLDINGS LIMITED A #&E@EHERAF

ANNUAL REPORT 2007

For the year ended 31st December 2007

HE_ZZ+E T _A=+—HILFE

2007 2006
—EELHF —EETRF
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
K o FET FET
Cash flow from investing activities REEEHEELRE
Interest received 2 F 8 452 332
Interest yield on held-to-maturity Euﬁl%ﬁ Z|H 3
investments received ®E R B WA 3,475 3,633
Purchase of property, HEEME - BB
plant and equipment B (14,100) (29,649)
Redemption of held-to-maturity BRFEZEHA
investments 2B 50,735 10,089
Proceeds from disposal of LEME - BE
property, plant and equipment N B EROE 445 91
Proceeds from sales of investment & FRE
in certificate of deposits FT 18 38 27,909 —
Proceeds from sales of held Hj’%ﬁﬁz 2 S E
for trading investments Fr 15 32 424 210
Net cash generated from/ BREFBEZHESBWA
(used in) investing activities (£H) 25 69,340 (15,294)
Cash flow from financing activities BEEERERE
Repurchase of own shares & 7 = fE — (3,439)
Exercise of share options 1715 B iz 330 —
New bank loans MERITER 92,000 —
Repayment of bank loans ERIEITER (52,000) —
Dividends paid B E (142,441) (26,594)
Net cash used in financing MEEBEHZRS
activities fE R F5E (102,111) (30,033)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash ReERRLEEY
and cash equivalents 28, GRd) B8 6,266 (17.034)
Cash and cash equivalents FPzRER
at beginning of the year ReEEY 17,772 34,806
Cash and cash equivalents FRZ2ESREASEEY
at end of the year 24,038 17,772
Analysis of the balances of HeRESEEY
cash and cash equivalents Eerz oM
Bank balances and cash WRITHEF LIRS 24 24,038 17,772




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
e B BB &
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For the year ended 31st December 2007 HE-_ZTZTLtF+-_A=1+T—HIEFE
Capital Proposed
Share redemption final
Share premium  reserve  Capital Exchange dividend Retained
capital  account BX  reserve  reserve BZ  profits Total
Rx RHRE BKERE E1rRfE #BERE KIRE BFEN &t
(Note)
(Hiz)
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tér  FHr  TEr  TAr  FEr  TEr  TErL TiEx
At 1 January 2006 RZEE F-A—H 33,397 98,757 5,902 29,167 — 19,975 304,500 491,698
Currency translation RERPEE
differences recognised Bz E%
directly in equity AEEE — - - - N9 - - 197
Profit for the year AERRT - — - - - — 30307 30307
Total recognised income ~ CHERARA
and expense R¥ i — - — — 11,997 — 30307 42,29
2005 final dividend paid ~ ERE-ZTHE
(Note 12) KBRS (W12 = = = = = (19,975) — (19,975)
Repurchase of own shares {7 & (301)  (2,803) 301 — — — (636) (3,439
2006 interim dividend paid EERE-FENE
(Note 12) nHRE (K12 - - - - - — (66190  (6619)
Proposed final dividend ~ BERBRE (W12 - - - - - 9,929 9,929) -
(Note 12)
At 31 December 2006 RZBERE
+-A=1t-H 33,096 95,954 6,203 29,167 11,987 9,929 317623 503,959
Currency translation RERTER
differences recognised BRLE%
directly in equity BEET — — - — 13,588 — 13,588
Profit for the year RERRT - - - - - — 19954 19,954
Total recognised income B HEREMA
and expense R¥ i - - - — 13,588 — 19954 33,542
2006 final dividend paid ~ ERE-FENE
(Note 12) ABRE (Bz12) - - - - - (9929 @) (9,938)
Exercise of share options 7/ Bk 1 30 300 - - - - — 330
Other appropriations HEtp R - — — 11,102 — —  (11,102) —
2007 special dividend paid EEE T+ E
(Note 12) KEIRE (K1) - - - - - —  (132503) (132,503)
At 31 December 2007 RZERLE
+-A=t-H 33,126 96,254 6,203 40,269 25,575 — 193,963 395,390
Note: The capital reserve of the Group represents Peoples Hiat : BZNGER T R B IE % F 5 E B b B 1 % 6
Republic of China (“PRC") enterprise reserve fund BES o

appropriated from retained profits.

HHFEE = L00C LHOLIH TVNNNY (E\Y/Eﬂ%ﬁiﬁl‘i A3LINIT SONIATOH 184



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 % ¥R 3% B &F

ZELEFR k\RBl HOLDINGS LIMITED A #&@EAERAF

ANNUAL REPORT 2007

For the year ended 31st December 2007

GENERAL

RBI Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability. The address of its registered office
is Clarendon House, Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda and its principal place of business is 7/F
Tower 1, 75 Mody Road, Tsimshatsui East, Hong Kong.
The Company's shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "“Stock

Exchange”).

The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) include the
design, manufacture and sale of toys. Details of the
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to the

financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 32 to 127 have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). The
financial statements also include the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the Rules Governing the Listing of

Securities on The Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The financial statements for the year ended 31st
December 2007 were approved for issue by the Board
of directors on 23rd April 2008.

ZELF+_A=+—RHIFE

—RER

AEsERAERETMKLAEREE
RAR  AAREMBFEEESR
Clarendon House, Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda} = & & %
B A VS S ) B R B Mb 38 755k F
FREROIETE - ARRARHDES
BEEXSMAERAR (TR £

-

m o

RKARREWMB AR (KB ATAE
Bl MEZEB AR  REREED
B FENBRARFRLAEPMERERN
FF18 °

HNRE127TEZMBEHRRERREE
GG ([BESMAE])EM
ZERBMBREER ([FEMBRELE
) (BEMBER BB B REE
Al BESENNBRE) R - 15
WRNEE BB QBRI R B P E 5
EmARR (T EMRANL) BRE 28R H
BEHE-

BE-BTtF+-A=+-ALEE
ZHBREER-BBN\EMA=T=
AEEEE AT -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 % ¥R 3% B &F

39

For the year ended 31st December 2007 HE-_ZTZTLtF+-_A=1+T—HIEFE

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
HKFRSs

In current year, the Group has applied, for the first
time, the following new standards, amendment and
interpretations issued by the HKICPA, which are

2.

BRI NEET E R MK R
=28

RAFE  AEBSERERTIISHE
MEBRHMAGRMG  RAKE =2
THE—A-ARBZMBFEERY

relevant and effective for the Group's financial AR - (BRI AR
statements beginning on 1st January 2007.
HKAS 1 (Amendment) Presentation of Financial Statements el (B 8% 2 25

— Capital Disclosures
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
The adoption of the new and amended HKFRSs had
no material effect on how the results and financial
position for the current or prior accounting periods
have been prepared. Accordingly, no prior period

adjustment is required.

HKAS 1 (Amendment) — Presentation of Financial

Statements — Capital Disclosures

In accordance with the HKAS 1 (Amendment) —
Presentation of Financial Statements — Capital
Disclosures, the Group now reports on its capital
management objectives, policies and procedures in
each annual financial report. The new disclosures that
become necessary due to this change are detailed in
note 37.
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
HKFRSs (continued)

HKFRS 7 — Financial Instruments: Disclosures

HKFRS 7 — Financial Instruments: Disclosures is
mandatory for reporting periods beginning on 1st
January 2007 or later. The new standard replaces and
amends the disclosure requirements previously set out
in HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and
Disclosures and has been adopted by the Group in its
financial statements for the year ended 31st December
2007. All disclosures relating to financial instruments
including the comparative information have been
updated to reflect the new requirements. In particular,

the Group's financial statements now feature:

— a sensitivity analysis explained the Group's
market risk exposure in regard to its financial

instruments, and

— a maturity analysis that shows the remaining
contractual maturities of financial liabilities,

each as at the balance sheet date. The first-time
application of HKFRS 7, however, has not resulted in
any prior-period adjustments on cash flows, net income

or balance sheet items.
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED

HKFRSs (Continued)

2.1 New or amended HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective

The Group has not early adopted the following
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective.

HKAS 1 (Revised)
HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)
HKFRS 8

HK(IFRIC)-Interpretation 11

HK(IFRIC)- Interpretation 12

HK(IFRIC)-Interpretation 13

HK(IFRIC)-Interpretation 14

Presentation of Financial Statements
Borrowing Costs

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements °
Share-based Payment
— Vesting conditions
and Cancellations
Business Combinations °

Operating Segments '

HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury
Share Transactions 2

Service Concession Arrangements *

Customer Loyalty Programmes *

HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and Their Interaction ®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1st January 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1st March 2007

S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1st January 2008

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1st July 2008

9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1st July 2009

Among these new standards and interpretations, HKAS

1 (Revised) is expected to be relevant to the Group's

financial statements.
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED 2. ERMFITHEBITEEBT KR
HKFRSs (Continued) HEA (@)

Amendment to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial BB ERE15 (BFTA) » BKE
Statements xRE%

This amendment affects the presentation of owner ZIERTEHRAIFEAED 2 25| R 5| #
changes in equity and introduces a statement of EHRARERBENZE - FREJEE
comprehensive income. Preparers will have the option NE—2mBAREKA X GER/NFTIE
of presenting items of income and expense and B)23WARMAXIEE REMEEK
components of other comprehensive income either in AWK D (kB REAFHINE 2
a single statement of comprehensive income with HBA) - ZIEFTTEHAREE 2 B 55
subtotals, or in two separate statements (a separate MAKEEBRTE  BEEs<KES
income statement followed by a statement of other THIEM - BEEIETMZETHERE 2
comprehensive income). This amendment does not P mEk 2 BEBEE -

affect the financial position or results of the Group

but will give rise to additional disclosures.

Management is currently assessing the detailed impact

of this amendment on the Group's financial

statements.

The directors of the Company are currently assessing ARAmEERFNGEMATENRZEL
the impact of the other new standards and TR WA ASETBHRE
interpretations but are not yet in a position to state ERBEAMBEEERER -
whether they would have material impact on the

Group’s financial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. TESHHBRME

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these financial
statements are summarised below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years
presented unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost convention except for non-
current assets classified as held for sale and
certain financial instruments, which are stated at
fair values. The measurement bases are fully

described in the accounting policies below.
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For the year ended 31st December 2007 HE-_ZTZTLtF+-_A=1+T—HIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESHEEFEHME »®

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 3.1 mBEEE(F)
It should be noted that accounting estimates and EEERERAMBRREEER
assumptions are used in preparation of the it e MR - BAZEHE
financial statements. Although these estimates TTHEEABREH RS MH
are based on management’s best knowledge and SATENRAT B R HEmIEL
judgement of current events and actions, actual EELERAUGEME B ML
results may ultimately differ from those Ao BREAFEHEERSH
estimates. The areas involving a higher degree FE - KEABBEHRRAEBEKN
of judgement or complexity, or areas where 5B M B R A G E M IS &R M
assumptions and estimates are significant to the AR EE -
financial statements, are disclosed in note 4.

3.2 Basis of consolidation 3.2 HKEREERE
The consolidated financial statements incorporate REMBERREEARAR A KEK
the financial statements of the Company and its BRrREFHE+—_A=1+—H
subsidiaries made up to 31st December each IEZ SRR -
year.

3.3 Subsidiaries 3.3 MEAA
Subsidiaries are entities (including special MBARDASEBEHEMBERE
purpose entities) over which the Group has the ERR BRI AR E %WEP

power to control the financial and operating
policies so as to obtain benefits from their
activities. The existence and effect of potential
voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing
whether the Group controls another entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are excluded from consolidation from the date

that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the assets

transferred.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

33

3.4

Subsidiaries (Continued)

In the Company's balance sheet, subsidiaries are
carried at cost less any impairment loss unless
the subsidiary is held for sale or included in
disposal group. The results of the subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis
of dividends received and receivable at the

balance sheet date.

Foreign currency translation

The financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollars (HK$), which is also the functional

currency of the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the

consolidated entities, foreign currency
transactions are translated into the functional
currency of the individual entity using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At balance sheet date, monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
balance sheet date retranslation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year-end exchange rate are

recognised in the income statement.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are

denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined and are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not

retranslated.
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For the year ended 31st December 2007 HE-_ZTZTLtF+-_A=1+T—HIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESTHHRHE )

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

&

In the consolidated financial statements, all
individual financial statements of foreign
operations, originally presented in a currency
different from the Group's presentation currency,
have been converted into HK$. Assets and
liabilities have been translated into HK$ at the
closing rate at the balance sheet date. Income
and expenses have been converted into HK$ at
the exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates,
or at the average rates over the reporting period
provided that the exchange rate do not fluctuate
significantly. Any differences arising from this
procedure have been dealt with in the exchange
reserve in equity.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value for the sale of
goods, net of value-added tax, rebates and
discounts. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised as
follows:

Sales of goods are recognised upon transfer of
the significant risks and rewards of ownership to
the customer. This is usually taken as the time
when the goods are delivered and the customer
has accepted the goods.

Sales of investments are recognised when the
sale agreement becomes unconditional and it is
probable that the economic benefits associated
with the sale will flow to the Group.

Interest income and interest yield on held-to-
maturity investment is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest rate
method.

Dividend is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

SE6

3.7

3.8

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised and included
in finance costs in the consolidated income
statement in the period when incurred.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised
as an expense in the period when incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising
from development expenditure is recognised as
an intangible asset provided that they meet the
following recognition requirements:

(i)  demonstration of technical feasibility of the
prospective product for internal use or sale;

(i) the intangible asset will generate probable
economic benefits through internal use or
sale;

(iii) sufficient technical, financial and other

resources are available for completion; and
(iv) the intangible asset can be reliably
measured

Direct costs include employee costs incurred on
development along with an appropriate portion
of relevant overheads. The costs of internally
generated product developments are recognised
as intangible assets. They are subject to the same
subsequent measurement method as externally
acquired intangible assets.

All other development expenditure is recognised
as an expense in the period in which incurred.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses.
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For the year ended 31st December 2007 HE-_ZTZTLtF+-_A=1+T—HIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESHEEHE (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.8 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 3.8 M¥- -BERRE (&)

Buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the
buildings could be measured separately from the
fair value of the leasehold land at the inception
of the lease, other than factory under
construction, are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost
over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method, at the following rates per
annum:

Buildings 20 to 25 years or over the
lease term of the land on
which the building is
situated, if shorter

Plant and machinery 5 to 8 years

Moulds and tools 3 to b years

Other tangible fixed assets 4 to 5 years

Factory under construction is stated at cost less
accumulated impairment loss, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
incurred during the periods of construction,
installation and testing. Factory under
construction is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

The assets’ estimated useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet
date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal
is determined as the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in the income statement.
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e

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.8

5B

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other costs,
such as repairs and maintenance are charged to
the income statement during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold
interest to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a
currently undetermined future use.

When the Group holds a property interest under
an operating lease to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation, the interest is classified
and accounted for as an investment property on
a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an
investment property is accounted for as if it were
held under a finance lease.

On initial recognition, investment property is
measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment property is stated at fair
value. Fair value is determined by external
professional valuers with sufficient experience
with respect to both the location and the nature
of the investment.

The carrying amounts recognised in the balance
sheet reflect the prevailing market conditions at
the balance sheet date.

Gains or losses arising from either changes in
the fair value or the sale of an investment
property are included in the income statement
for the period in which they arise.
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For the year ended 31st December 2007 HE-_ZTZTLtF+-_A=1+T—HIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESHEEHE (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.10 EERE

3.10 Impairment of assets

Property, plant and equipment, prepaid lease
payments for land and interests in subsidiaries
are subject to impairment testing and are tested
for impairment whenever there are indications
that the assets’ carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount under the Group's accounting policy, in
which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease according to that policy. The
recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs to sell,
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessment of time
value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those of other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generate cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit). As a result, some assets are tested
individually for impairment and some are tested
at cash-generating unit level.

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating
units is charged pro rata to the other assets in
the cash-generating unit, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less cost to sell, or value in
use, if determinable.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.10 Impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the assets’ recoverable amount and
only to the extent that the asset's carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment

loss had been recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance
with HKAS 34 -
respect of the first six months of the financial

Interim Financial Reporting, in

year. At the end of the interim period, the Group
applies the same impairment testing, recognition
and reversal criteria as it would be at the end of

the financial year.

Impairment loss recognised in an interim period
in respect of goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period. This is the case even if no
loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed
only at the end of the financial year to which the

interim period relates.
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.11 Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a

series of transactions, is or contains a lease if

the Group determines that the arrangement

conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets

for an agreed period of time in return for a

payment or a series of payments. Such a

determination is made based on an evaluation of

the substance of the arrangement and is

regardless of whether the arrangement takes the

legal form of a lease.

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the
Group

Assets that are held by the Group under
leases which transfer to the Group
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases, with the following
exceptions:

— property held under operating leases
that would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property is
classified as an investment property
on a property-by-property basis and, if
classified as investment property, is
accounted for as if held under a

finance lease; and
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.11 Leases (Continued)

(ii) Operating lease charges as the lessee

(1

Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases. Where
the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged to
the income statement on the straight
line method over the lease terms
except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased
assets. Lease incentives received are
recognised in the income statement
as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent
rental are charged to the income
statement in the accounting period in

which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31st December 2007 #H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.11 Leases (Continued)

(ii) Operating lease charges as the lessee
(Continued)

(2) Prepaid lease payments for land are
up-front payments to acquire the long
term interests in usage of land. The
payments are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated on the
straight-line method over the lease
term.

(iii) Assets leased out under operating leases

as the lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases
are measured and presented according to
the nature of the assets. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised
as an expense over the lease term on the

same basis as the rental income.

Rental income receivable from operating
leases is recognised in the income
statement on the straight-line method over
the periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to
be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in
the income statement as an integral part of
the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting

period in which they are earned.
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e

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12 Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into
the following categories:

—  held-to-maturity investments

— held for trading investments

— loans and receivables

— available-for-sale financial assets

Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition depending
on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired and where allowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at every
reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only
when, the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular
way purchased and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
When financial assets are recognised initially,
they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case
of investments not at fair value through profit or
loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when
the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments expire or are transferred and
substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred. At each balance
sheet date, financial assets are reviewed to
assess whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. If any such evidence exists,
impairment loss is determined and recognised
based on the classification of the financial asset.
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12 Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturity
that the Group’'s management has the
positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method,
less any impairment losses. Amortised cost
is calculated taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate and transaction

cost.

Held for trading investments

Held for trading investments are mainly
financial assets held for trading and they
are acquired for purpose of selling in the
near term.

Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments or financial

guarantee contracts.
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(ii)

ZELF+_A=+—RHIFE

FESHTHERE &)

3.12 BBEE (&)

HEZIHHAZRE

REZEFHAZRENEE
[ 7€ =% Al B € BV & B e B E
HR - AEASEEREERE
BERMENFEZEHNA
ZIHTEMBEE - HEE
IAHEZREERKRABER
M ZORIR E # 8HARARAE
BEBEE o #EKAR
Rt R MBI RS E
BAE  UEEBRERA
RERZGRAEZHBKE D 2
BHEMR -

BIFEERE

REEERETERFEER
BEXHMHBEERBENE
HIAHE -

BRIEMTETABEERBA
U TESMBERELD
BRITETA (BB
BOETLR) T RFHIEER

==
= e

BHEIFE&E - L00Z LHOLIH TVNNNY (E@Eﬂ%ﬁii@rﬁ A3LINIT SONIATOH 194



56

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 % ¥R 3% B &F

ZELEFR k\RBl HOLDINGS LIMITED A #&@EAERAF

ANNUAL REPORT 2007

For the year ended 31st December 2007 #H

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12 Financial assets (Continued)

(ii)

Held for trading investments (Continued)

Financial assets may be designated at initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or

loss if the following criteria are met:

— the designation eliminates or

significantly reduces the inconsistent
treatment that would otherwise arise
from measuring the assets or
recognising gains or losses on them

on a different basis; or

— the assets are part of a group of

financial assets which are managed
and their performance evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management strategy
and information about the group of
financial assets is provided internally
on that basis to the key management

personnel; or

— the financial asset contains an
embedded derivative that would need

to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the
financial assets included in this category are
measured at fair value with changes in fair

value recognised in income statement.

2E_F
3.

ZLtFE+A=+T—HIEFE

FESHTHERE &)

3.12 BBEE (&)

(ii)

BEEERE (&)

e A MR 2 B IS E E S
ENRERR LR FEER
ABmK

— o ER AR
WA B TREEERE
ErzEBEEBENB R
BRABHET
BRI o

— BEBRAXFTYZREAR

EHERE  RFEE
R-BAXEEMAER
BORAFEEMGE
ZHEEERE S — B
o - A BE % 38 Bl B
BEEZEMYEZ
EEMAMEHRTE
ZERAR &

— BFRMBEERSS
Z 5 Bl iC R 2 M 0T
ETA-

ME RS T AUERZ
%ﬁéﬁﬁﬁ$ﬁﬁﬁ§'

AT EESHEBRERN
%ﬂo



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 % ¥R 3% B &F

57

For the year ended 31st December 2007

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12 Financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method, less any impairment losses.
Amortised cost is calculated taking into
account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate
and transaction cost.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets include
non-derivative financial assets that are either
designated to this category or do not qualify
for inclusion in any of the other categories
of financial assets. All financial assets within
this category are subsequently measured
at fair value. Gain or loss arising from a
change in the fair value is recognised
directly in equity, until the financial asset is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in equity
would be recognised in the income
statement. Interest calculated using the
effective interest rate method is recognised
in the income statement. Upon disposal, the
cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in equity is transferred to the

income statement.
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e

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12 Financial assets (Continued)

(iv) Available-for-sale financial assets

(Continued)

For available-for-sale investments in equity
securities that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be
settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
instruments, they are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at each
balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition.

=

Impairment of financial assets

At each balance sheet date, financial assets other

than at fair value through profit or loss are
reviewed to determine whether there is any
objective evidence of impairment. If any such
evidence exists, the impairment loss is measured

and recognised as follows:

(i)  Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss on loans and receivables

or held-to-maturity investments carried at

amortised cost has been incurred, the

amount of the loss is measured as the

difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated

future cash flows (excluding future credit

losses that have not been

discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective

incurred)

interest rate computed at initial recognition).
The amount of the loss is recognised in the
income statement of the period in which
the impairment occurs.

= —
4= —

e

ZELF+_A=+—RHIFE

FESHTHERE &)

3.12 BBEE (&)
(iv)] TRHEEZHEELE (&)

Al i 2 R BT 5 B
MAFEEELAEAEZ
BABSRE  RRFER
EBRATAEGREI AN
RETEGEZITETA

RN HERIE 2 B E

H

12 BB AE ] 2 38 Bl R (B &S

st -

f % & E R E

REZER - BEHRQFER
ABHUIINZHMBEEETR
A AEERSAEMNEEREE
PR WEEENZSETR A
BATHAAERERRER

18 :

(i)

B KRS BR 2 B B E

WA RETRBT » REH
PR AR 51 B 2 B R b e M RO
FHEEIHAZRELR
HERBRE  BEBRRBENAE
EREERRMBEEZR
EERME (AR #ER
BB cERMNE) AL
et AKRERE (TEHE
MAELEZRKEEER)
REZZHAE - BEIE
RBEELE 2 BEREER

R -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 % ¥R 3% B &F

59

For the year ended 31st December 2007

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
(Continued)

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed to the extent
that it does not result in a carrying amount
of the financial asset exceeding what the
amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date
the impairment is reversed. The amount of
the reversal is recognised in the income
statement of the period in which the

reversal occurs.

Available-for-sale financial assets

When a decline in the fair value of an
available-for-sale financial asset has been
recognised directly in equity and there is
objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, an amount is removed from equity
and recognised in the income statement as
impairment loss. That amount is measured
as the difference between the asset’s
acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that
asset previously recognised in the income
statement.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12

3.13

3.14

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(ii)  Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

Reversals in respect of investment in equity
instruments classified as available-for-sale
are not recognised in the income statement.
The subsequent increase in fair value is
recognised directly in equity. Impairment
losses in respect of debt securities are
reversed if the subsequent increase in fair
value can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised. Reversal of impairment losses
in such circumstances are recognised in the

income statement.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the first-in-first-out method, and in the case of
work in progress and finished goods, comprise
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated cost of completion

and applicable selling expenses.

Accounting for income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred

tax.
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For the year ended 31st December 2007 HE-_ZTZTLtF+-_A=1+T—HIEFE
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESHEEFEHME »®

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.14 FiIBHR ST EE (&)

3.14 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities
comprise those obligations to, or claims from,
fiscal authorities relating to the current or prior
reporting period, that are unpaid at the balance
sheet date. They are calculated according to the
tax rates and tax laws applicable to the fiscal
periods to which they relate, based on the taxable
profit for the year. All changes to current tax
assets or liabilities are recognised as a
component of tax expense in the income

statement.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability
method on temporary differences at the balance
sheet date between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, tax losses available to be carried
forward as well as other unused tax credits, to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses and

unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither

taxable nor accounting profit or loss.

BIEFSHEER, SHABRE
& E B A AR 0 I 81 7 B 5 St
AT FR ¥ B 75 7 FE A< T A M b A =k
MBRMBERR BB EME - %F
ot 765 = A T A8 1% A8 A B IR
ZE R ERFE - REANER
Mafard - BB EESE
Bz BEHNNERBIERX
IClN EE e

BIEFIE T R B EE B R
XNEERABBZEHEEAES
BRERGEEB 2GR EE
HoBREMBAGBE —MRIUFMEE
ERMERMEEREER BEXEHRE
& B B PA A 86 B FE AR B0 ) AT A
ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁmg%&%%~$@
AREEERADRATBEES
B SRATAAEME R EEE -
AHEETBEERREMKEA
MGIEBER -

ER—ERZH - AEEBEE
BEHUIINREVISHEREER
BEmMSI Bz LR EZEEN
ZEABDER NI ESHIE
AT ERRZERERIEER
REE -

W@k

BHEIFE&E - L00Z LHOLIH TVNNNY (E@Eﬂ%ﬁii@rﬁ A3LINIT SONIATOH 194



62

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 % ¥R 3% B &F

ZELEFR k\RBl HOLDINGS LIMITED A #&@EAERAF

ANNUAL REPORT 2007

For the year ended 31st December 2007

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.14

3.15

3.16

Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences

will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting,
at tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period the liability is settled or the asset realised,
provided they are enacted or substantively

enacted at the balance sheet date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are
recognised in the income statement, or in equity
if they relate to items that are charged or credited
directly to equity.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank
and in hand, demand deposits with banks and
short term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part

of the Group's cash management.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share
capital is determined using the nominal value of
shares that have been issued.
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.16

3.17

Share capital (Continued)

Any transaction costs associated with the issue
of shares are deducted from the proceeds (net
of any related income tax benefits), to the extent
they are incremental costs directly attributable

to the equity transaction.

Retirement benefit costs and short term

employee benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided

through defined contribution plans.

Defined contribution plan

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “"MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
for all of its employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’'s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for the
Group’s employer voluntary contributions, which
are refunded to the Group when the employee
leaves employment prior to the contributions
vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme.
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.17 Retirement benefit costs and short term

employee benefits (Continued)

Defined contribution plan (Continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in PRC are required to participate in a
central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute certain percentage of its
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The

contributions are charged to the

statement as they become payable in accordance

with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by

employees up to the balance sheet date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such

as sick leave and maternity leave are not

recognised until the time of leave.

3.18 Equity-settled share-based payment

transactions

All share-based payment arrangements granted
after 7th November 2002 and had not vested on
1st January 2005 are recognised in the financial
statements. The Group operates equity-settled
share-based compensation plans for remuneration

of its employees and its directors.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESHEEHE (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.18 Equity-settled share-based payment 318 UBRALHERURG I F 2R S

transactions (Continued)

All employee services received in exchange for
the grant of any share-based compensation are
measured at their fair values. These are indirectly
determined by reference to the share options
awarded. Their value is appraised at the grant
date and excludes the impact of any non-market
vesting conditions (for example, profitability and

sales growth targets).

All share-based compensation is ultimately
recognised as an expense in income statement
with a corresponding increase in equity. If vesting
periods or other vesting conditions apply, the
expense is recognised over the vesting period,
based on the best available estimate of the
number of share options expected to vest. Non-
market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that
are expected to become exercisable. Estimates
are subsequently revised, if there is any indication
that the number of share options expected to
vest differs from previous estimates. No
adjustment to expense recognised in prior periods
is made if fewer share options ultimately are
exercised than originally vested.

At the time when the share options are exercised,
the amount previously recognised in share option
reserve will be transferred to share premium.
When the share options are forfeited or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to retained profits.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.19 Financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and

other payables and borrowings.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All interest related charges are
recognised as an expense in finance costs in the

income statement.

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or

cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amount is recognised in the income

statement.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate

method.
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.19

3.20

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective

interest rate method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date.

Provision and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the

obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet
date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate.

ET+FE+_A=+—HIEFE

FESHTHERE &)

3.19

3.20

MBaE (&)
EE

EBEEVNSRATE, HKREELEZ
REHEKAHER - BERERBIEEE
A ATIER IS RIE (KRR S
B AR) BB Bl B E 2 R =58 A
ERAMSEREERREKR X
®R o

BEIERARDEE  EAKE
BEGHERMNECEERABZH
REGERRZL T —@EARK
AN o

BERIAREE
MAEEEBESEHMAAER

EAENEEEM  MBITZE
R A A gE I K OB M 2= 0%
WA SEE 20 k&5 - B
REBARE BEEZHHEER
DEBEX  AREERETZAER
BEATERZ BBV -

FIERERSZ#EBELRAY
EHABRARBRE R REMR
5T °

BHEIFE&E - L00Z LHOLIH TVNNNY (E@Eﬂ%ﬁii@rﬁ A3LINIT SONIATOH 194



68

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 % ¥R 3% B &F

ZELEFR k\RBl HOLDINGS LIMITED A #&@EAERAF

ANNUAL REPORT 2007

For the year ended 31st December 2007

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.20 Provision and contingent liabilities (Continued)

3.21

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits

is remote.

Contingent liabilities are recognised in the course
of the allocation of purchase price to the assets
and liabilities acquired in a business combination.
They are initially measured at fair value at the
date of acquisition and subsequently measured
at the higher of the amount that would be
recognised in a comparable provision as
described above and the amount initially
recognised less any accumulated amortisation, if

appropriate.

Financial guarantee issued

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer (or the guarantor) to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the

terms of a debt instrument.
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.21

3.22

Financial guarantee issued (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts in the scope of
HKAS 39 are accounted for as financial liabilities.
A financial guarantee contract is recognised
initially at its fair value plus transactions costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of the
financial guarantee contract, except when such
contract is recognised at fair value through profit
or loss. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contract
at the higher of: (i) the amount determined in
accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets”; and (ii) the
amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, accumulated amortisation recognised
in accordance with HKAS 18 “Revenue”

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group
if:

(i)  directly, or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, the Group:

— controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group;

— has an interest in the entity that gives
it significant influence over the Group;

— has joint control over the Group;

(i)  the party is an associate;

(iii)  the party is a jointly-controlled entity;
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e

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.22

3.23

Related parties (Continued)

(iv) the party is a member of the key
management personnel of the Group or its

parent;

(v) the party is a close member of the family
or any individual referred to in (i) or (iv);

the party is an entity that is controlled,
jointly-controlled or significantly influenced
by or for which significant voting power in
such entity resides with, directly or
indirectly, any individual referred to in (iv)
or (v); or

(vii) the party is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of the Group,
or of any entity that is a related party of
the Group.

Segment reporting

In accordance with the Group's internal financial
reporting, the Group has determined that
business segments be presented as the primary
reporting format and geographical segment as
the secondary reporting format.

In respect of business segment reporting,
unallocated costs represent corporate expenses.
Segment assets consist primarily of property,
plant and equipment, prepaid land lease
payments for land, inventories, receivables and
operating cash. Segment liabilities comprise
operating liabilities and exclude items such as
tax payable and certain corporate borrowings.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to
property, plant and equipment.

In respect of geographical segment reporting,
revenue is based on the countries in which the
customers are located and total assets and capital
expenditure are where the assets are located.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESHEEHE (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.24 Non-current assets held for sale

324 HHEZHARBEE

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is
classified as held for sale if it is highly probable
that its carrying amount will be recovered through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing
use and the asset (or disposal group) is available
for sale in its present condition. A disposal group
is a group of assets to be disposed of together
as a group in a single transaction, and liabilities
directly associated with those assets that will be
transferred in the transaction.

Immediately before classification as held for sale,
the measurement of the non-current assets (and
all individual assets and liabilities in a disposal
group) is brought up-to-date in accordance with
the accounting policies before the classification.
Then, on initial classification as held for sale and
until disposal, the non-current assets (except for
certain assets as explained below), or disposal
groups, are recognised at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
The principal exceptions to this measurement
policy so far as the accounts of the Group are
concerned are deferred tax assets, financial
assets (other than investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures) and investment
properties. These assets, even if held for sale,
would continue to be measured in accordance

with the policies set out elsewhere in note 3.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that

are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within

the next financial year are discussed below.

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and

equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives of
property, plant and equipment and their related
depreciation charges. When useful lives of property,
plant and equipment are different from that previously
estimated, the depreciation charges for future periods

will be adjusted accordingly.

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment

The property, plant and equipment of the Group are
reviewed by management for possible impairment
when events or changes in operating environment
indicate that the carrying amounts of such assets may
not be fully recoverable. In determining the recoverable
amounts of these assets, expected cash flows to be
generated by the assets are discounted to their present
value, which involves significant level of judgment
relating to sales volume, selling prices and
manufacturing and other operating cost. When a
decline in an asset’s recoverable amount has occurred,
the carrying amount is reduced to its estimated

recoverable amount.
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Estimated fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an
active market for similar lease and other contracts. In
the absence of such information, the Group determines
the amount within a range of reasonable fair value
estimates. In making its judgment, the Group considers

information from a variety of sources including:

(i)  current prices in an active market for properties
of different nature, condition or location (or
subject to different lease or other contracts),
adjusted to reflect those differences;

(ii)  recent prices of similar properties in less active
markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes
in economic conditions since the date of the

transactions that occurred at those prices; and

(iii) discounted cash flow projections based on
reliable estimates of future cash flows, derived
from the terms of any existing lease and other
contracts, and (where possible) from external
evidence such as current market rents for similar
properties in the same location and condition,
and using discount rates that reflect current
market assessments of the uncertainty in the

amount and timing of the cash flows.

Impairment loss on trade and other receivables

The Group regularly conducts assessments on possible
losses resulting from the inability of customers to
settle the amounts due to the Group. The assessment
is based, inter alia, on the age of the debt and the
credit-worthiness of the customer. If the financial
condition of the customers deteriorates, the amount
of allowance for doubtful recovery of receivables would
be higher than that provided for in the financial

statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Impairment loss and net realisable value of

inventories

Included in the consolidated balance sheet at 31st
December 2007 are inventories of HK$160,711,000
which are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Management conducts assessments on the net
realisable value of inventories by reference to their
age, obsolescence, estimated net selling price and
other economic conditions of the markets in which
the Group's customers operate. If the actual selling
prices of inventories are substantially less than
expected due to an adverse market condition or other

factors, impairment loss on inventories may result.

Deferred tax assets

As at 31st December 2007, deferred tax assets of
HK$9,954,000 in relation to unused tax losses and
other deductible temporary differences have been
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet. The
realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends
on whether sufficient future profits or taxable
temporary differences will be available in the future.
In cases where the actual future profits generated are
less than expected, a reversal of the deferred tax
assets may arise, which would be recognised in the
income statement for the period in which such a

reversal takes place.

=

= —
4= —

4.

ZELF+_A=+—RHIFE

FESF AT RAE ®

FEZRERBR

SR -BELE+-A=+—HzZHEE
BEERBEXRNEESA160,711,000
BIT  ZETFERK ARSI EREER
EPREBEAR - EEENEEEZA
SIMFETDRBERE AR {56
BEFEREERPKE 2T HENEMK
BRA ERTFECEREEBRTR™
SRS B E R E A E DA ET -
FEZREEENEEHEA -

EEREEE

R-ZZLF+-_A=+—H F#K
FERZHRBEBRREMAEINEREE
BBRERAEECNGEAREEREBR
R Z £ FR9,954,000/8 7T © EIER
REEZABEETIZERBARALES
R GMBERHERFEERE - BR
B2 RIOEN DGR - BERIBE
ERREE AL - MZxBELeRNZIE 2
REBERPHER -
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL
SEGMENTS

Business segments

The Group is principally engaged in the design,
manufacture and sales of toys. Revenue, which is also
the Group's turnover, represents the net amounts
received and receivable for goods sold by the Group
to outside customer, after allowances for returns and
trade discount, and rental income received and
receivable, during the year. The businesses based upon
which the Group reports its primary segment
information are as follows:

Own Brand — Manufacture of toys designed/
developed by the Group and sold
under the Group’s brand name or the

labels of licensors

OEM/ODM — Manufacture of toys with design
originated from customers and
where the toolings are owned by

customers

Moulds — Manufacture of moulds for sale to

customers

Each of the Group’s business segments represents a
strategic business unit that offers products and
services which are subject to risks and returns that
are different from those of the other business

segments.

Segment information about these businesses is

presented below.

=

ZELF+_A=+—RHIFE

EBRMESE

E ik

AEB 2 ETBEH DR - RERHE
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

5. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL
SEGMENTS (cContinued)

Revenue and Results

For the year ended 31st December 2007

E-ETLFT A=t ALFE

5. ¥ RMWEDHE &)

BARE
BE-FTLE+-A=+—HIEEE

i

Own Brand OEM/ODM Moulds Consolidated
B &% fm k& OEM/ODM T e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAETT FAETT FAET FAET
Revenue A
External sales ESRd R 450,250 75,177 475 525,902
Result S
Segment results SR RIE 37,542 4,182 43 41,767
Other income H bl A 8,209
Valuation surplus on "B Y=
investment EEEE
properties 2,242
Unallocated corporate K& DL~
expenses £SEEA (33,509)
Finance costs B 7% 8 A (1,068)
Profit before & T 1S 7 Al
income tax Y A 17,641
Income tax credit BT 18 B 75 WA 2,313
Profit for the year % B8 & 1 F I V)
attributable to
shareholders 19,954
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

5. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL
SEGMENTS (cContinued)

Revenue and Results (Continued)

For the year ended 31st December 2006

E-ETLFT A=t ALFE

5. ¥ RMWEDHE &)

BARKR ()
HE—SEAF+=A=+—HILFE

Own Brand OEM/ODM Moulds  Consolidated
B & m b OEM/ODM T fra
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAETT FAET FAETT FAETT
Revenue A
External sales ESRd R 463,285 86,117 752 550,154
Result ECS)
Segment results SR RIE 56,980 4,100 66 61,146
Other income H Uz A 5,106
Valuation deficit on "EME
investment BERE
properties (600)
Unallocated corporate A& DE 2 EBEE A
expenses (32,615)
Finance costs BB ER (783)
Profit before b BT 15 B4 A & A
income tax 32,254
Income tax expense  FT{SFiiEH XX (1,947)

Profit for the year A% B4
attributable to F N g

shareholders

30,307
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

5. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL
SEGMENTS (cContinued)

Consolidated Assets and Liabilities

As at 31st December 2007

=

E_TEE+FE+-_A=+—HILFE

5. ¥ RHESD

SeEERAR

NP

BE_ZZE+F+_HA=+—H

Own Brand OEM/ODM Moulds Consolidated
B &R m b OEM/ODM I ma
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FAETT FAETT
Assets BE
Segment assets DEEE 181,408 28,192 892 210,492
Investment properties & & 9%
(classified as (B8
non-current assets A
held for sale) B2 I
HEE) 12,542
Other unallocated REH
assets ZEE 282,281
Consolidated total REBEE
assets 505,315
Liabilities =R
Segment liabilities HEEE 12,058 8,395 4,403 24,856
Unallocated liabilities FR&H R 2B E 85,069
Consolidated total mEBAaRE
liabilities 109,925
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL
SEGMENTS (cContinued)

Consolidated Assets and Liabilities (Continued)

As at 31st December 2006

E-ETLFT A=t ALFE

5. ¥ RMWEDHE &)

FARERAM (H)
R-FEA®+=A=+—FH

Own Brand OEM/ODM Moulds  Consolidated
B & m b OEM/ODM T fra
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET
Assets BE
Segment assets DEEE 191,682 40,581 1,440 233,703
Investment properties & & ¥ % 10,300
Held-to-maturity =B EE HH
investments ZIHE 52,170
Held for trading BEZRGEE
investments 236
Other unallocated REDE
assets X BE 286,876
Consolidated total IREBEE
assets 583,285
Liabilities =B
Segment liabilities HEEE 10,408 8,475 509 19,392
Unallocated liabilities HR&E&HE 2 EE 59,934

Consolidated total
liabilities

meaRaE

79,326
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

5. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL

SEGMENTS (cContinued)

RE-FETtF+-A=+—AIL4E

S

Other Information

For the year ended 31st December 2007

EBRMEESE (#)

g
REE-FFtE+-A=+—AiL%*

Own Brand OEM/ODM Moulds Unallocated Total
B=Rm&E OEM/ODM I KD st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAETT FAETT FAETT FAEIT FAETT
Capital additions & AN
— Property, plant — W - KR
and equipment ME&E 9,260 — — 4,840 14,100
Depreciation and 31 E I 5
amortisation 24,658 1,600 82 1,666 28,006
Gain on disposal of LEWE -
property, plant &% B &
and equipment Hf 2 W (257) — — — (257)
Allowance for EREE
doubtful debts 1,185 — — — 1,185
Provision for slow F B #E
moving inventories 7,838 348 — 87 8,273

For the year ended 31st December 2006

Own Brand OEM/ODM Moulds Unallocated Total
B miE OEM/ODM I REHE #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAETT FAETT FAETT FAEIT FAETT
Capital additions & AN
— Property, plant — ME - BE
and equipment MERE 12,242 — 9 17,398 29,649
Depreciation and I 8 I 5
amortisation 22,374 2,929 85 1,644 27,032
Loss on disposal of HEWE -
property, plant % B & &
and equipment ol iki=! 270 — 3 98 371
Allowance for ZIREE
doubtful debts 1,535 — — — 1,535
Provision for slow 7B #E
moving inventories 1,420 296 — 13 1,729
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

5. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL 5. XBRHMES

SEGMENTS (cContinued)

Geographical segments

The sales activities by geographical market of the
Group's products are substantially carried out in Hong

Kong while the Group’'s manufacturing activities are

HE_ZZLE T _A=+—HILFE

i & 2
AEB2ABNEMNEBHE - MA
SEZEEXRBHRBEARKAME
(TeR B ) o B A 3 [ 3

carried out in other regions in the PRC.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group'’s

sales by geographical market, irrespective of the origin EME

of the goods:

NP

AT -

AEBEHERMET S DB (TRER
) ZORENT

2007 2006
—EELHF —EEREF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
North America 3 =M
United States of America E & 164,653 201,144
Canada mEx 48,148 62,070
Europe (including the United B (BiEEE - BEREKXRF)
Kingdom, Denmark and Italy) 231,799 202,926
Asia (including Japan and TN (BEBAREE)
South Korea) 21,270 28,825
Other locations (including Hfhh [ (B3R & 3P )
Australia and New Zealand) 60,032 55,189
525,902 550,154
The following is an analysis of the carrying amounts DHEEERMEUIERDE  BEIEKE

of segment assets and additions to property, plant

and equipment, analysed by the geographical area in

which the assets are located:

Segment assets

NERBEZFBHRONAOT :

Capital expenditure

PHEEE EARMERAX

2007 2006 2007 2006

—EELEF —EETRF —EELHE —ETRF

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FHETT FAET FET FAET

Hong Kong BB 61,695 142,397 719 79

Mainland China AR B K BE 353,718 340,623 13,381 29,570
United States E X

of America 89,902 100,265 — —

505,315 583,285 14,100 29,649
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6.

For the year ended 31st December 2007 HE-_ZTZTLtF+-_A=1+T—HIEFE
OTHER INCOME 6. HWA
2007 2006
—EELHF —ZEETRX
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest income PN @N 452 332
Interest yield on held-to- BAEEEHA
maturity investments & R B WA 2,065 2,481
Rental income from HEME
investment properties Z e WA 522 429
PRC tax incentive (Note) RS ER (FaE) 3,01 —
Other income H A 2,159 1,864
8,209 5,106

Note:  The PRC tax incentive represents part of the income

tax paid by certain PRC subsidiaries refunded by

the PRC government as an incentive for re-

investment of the profits of these subsidiaries.

B REBEERA KT BB EEE S
FRRSHASERE - MEBHE A

EEMEHED o

FINANCE COSTS 7. MBEAR
2007 2006
—EETLHF —ZTTRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET

Interest on bank loans wholly REFAEEREZIRTT

repayable within five year fa R Z2 7 8 698 487
Interest on bank overdrafts RITBZ 2F B 370 296
1,068 783
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

RE-FETtF+-A=+—AIL4E

8. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 8. FiBHAIER
2007 2006
—EELHF TR
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit before income tax has Fri8®iana A 2 0k~
been arrived at after (GFA) T3IEE -
charging/(crediting):
Auditors’ remuneration % S B & A 770 640
Amortisation of prepaid lease T = b 1H & 2 38
payments for land 1,014 92
Cost of inventories sold EEGFTERA
— including provision for — BRGEEEHE
slow moving inventories 243,682 240,088
Depreciation of property, Y BB KEE
plant and equipment R 4T E 26,992 26,040
Operating lease charges: MERATH -
— land and buildings — T R AR 2,300 2,469
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of HEWE - BE R
property, plant and equipment  ®#E 2 (W) EE (257) 371
Research and development ot 7% K B & Ak AR
expenditure 6,259 6,896
Staff costs including directors’ B iEE E#&
remuneration 2B ITRA 121,432 124,139
Allowance for doubtful debts 20K 1,185 1,535
Provision for slow moving GFEEE
inventories 8,273 1,729
Fair value gain on held for BEREEEREZ
trading investments N EED 2 W= — (196)
Net realised gain on held BEZRZKAE
for trading investments 2 W a SR (188) (89)
Net realised loss on held-to- FEREHHRAEE
maturity investments Z 18 F R 978 —
Net realised gain on investment 1FAEIRE 2
in certificate of deposits W 25 F 58 (1,086) —
Net exchange loss E = B8 558 492 1,108
Note: Kt -

The staff costs disclosed above include the Group's
contributions to retirement benefit schemes amounted to
HK$4,537,000 (2006: HK$5,007,000).

LB TR A B IEE X HERAREFFEIED
2 4,537,000 T (Z T T X F -
5,007,000/ 7T) °
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For the year ended 31st December 2007 HE_ZZLE T _A=+—HILFE
9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES 9. EELEABEMSE
EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EE=ME
The emoluments paid or payable to directors EZENENMESAT

were as follows:

Salaries,
allowances Performance Contributions
and other related to retirement
benefits incentive benefit

E#+  payments schemes

Fees EMRHEAM BRIk EHREF Total
e ENA& *E%S HEZHX ame
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAET FBT FAT FAT
(note) (Hft)
2007 “EEtE
Mr. Tsui Ming* BT E — 250 60 8 318
Mr. Chau Kai Man* BRI A — 310 48 10 368
Mr. Yip Yun Kuen ERELE — 2,508 1,400 101 4,009
Mr. Yip Yun Tim# ERR LA - 47 - 24 495
Mr. Chan Shun Po* BRIEE o & - 684 - 34 718
Mr. Chan, Micheal Siu Tai* Bk 3z 5t 4 # — 242 — 12 254
Mr. Yeung Wai Kin* GRELE 100 — — — 100
Mr. Man Mo Leung? XBEREES 150 - - - 150
Mr. Yap Alfred Donald, JP* EX&EKF 41+ 100 - - - 100
Mr. Chan Chu Kwan* BRI IR S 100 - - - 100
Mr. Kwong Kwan Ming* B3 A5 /¢ 4 * 12 — — — 12
Mr. Shih, Daniel Chia* BRE S E* 48 - - - 48
Mr. Foo Tin Chung* BRELAE 60 - - - 60
Total emoluments ZETLE
for year 2007 aMe 570 4,465 1,508 189 6,732
2006 “EERE
Mr. Yip Yun Kuen ERELE — 2,016 1,800 101 3,917
Mr. Yip Yun Tim ERREE — 930 380 46 1,356
Mr. Chan Shun Po BRIEE % & — 1,008 390 50 1,448
Mr. Chan, Michael Siu Tai ** Rk g 5 4 ** — 469 66 23 558
Ms. Chan Pik Ha # REB L — 18 — — 118
Mr. Yeung Wai Kin BRELE 100 — — — 100
Mr. Man Mo Leung XEREE 150 — — — 150
Mr. Yap Alfred Donald, JP ZXBE K F 4+ 100 — — — 100
Mr. Chan Chu Kwan BREELE = = = = =
Ms. Lau Ki Cho, Iris #* 240 4]/ ## 60 — — — 60
Total emoluments —EERE
for year 2006 Be 410 4,541 2,636 220 7,807
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

* Appointed on 3rd July 2007

**  Appointed on 1st January 2006
# Resigned on 3rd July 2007

it Resigned on 1st August 2006
##  Resigned on 1st October 2006

Note:

The performance related incentive payments were
determined mainly with the Group’s overall

performance.

The amounts disclosed above include directors’ fees
of HK$470,000 (2006: HK$310,000) and HK$100,000
(2006: HK$100,000) paid or payable to six (2006: three)
independent non-executive directors and one (2006:
one) non-executive director respectively.

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the years ended 31st December 2007 and 2006.

During the years ended 31st December 2007 and 2006,
no share options were granted to the directors in
respect of their services to the Group and further
details of which were set out in note 28 to the financial
statements.

HE_ZZLE T _A=+—HILFE

9. EEREABEME ©)

(a)

BEE=ME (&)

* RZZEZEEHELA=HZME
ZERF-—A—BZE
g RZZETEFELA=ZHEFE
i ﬁ@:gg/ FNA— E%ﬂ_jc

### jJ_/Q\

* % B/\

Hit

THERARSVEFTRETESLR
REBZEEBRA -

NERBEEABEE X EMES
FAM(ZTEAREF : =00 B IFEH
FTEER WM (ZTTARF : —fu)IF
$ITESE - H51AE470,00057C (ZF
TARF :31000m%7u>&10000m%
© 100,000/ 7T) °

REE_ZEZLFR_ZTETF+=
A=+— E¢¢F1ﬂ¢ﬁ§$W%
A BEREWRREMRME 2 25 °

REBEE_ZSZTLFR_ZTTF+=
A=T—HILFE  WEEZ2ER
BDODBEBEFEAAEEZRBEL - &
8 5F 15 & 71 B B 75 R 3R BT 3£ 28 o
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

Cin

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Employees’ emoluments

The emoluments of the five highest paid
employees included one (2006: three) directors

of the Company, details of which are set out

=

above. The emoluments of the remaining four

(2006: two) individuals were as follows:

= —
4= —

S

ZELF+_A=+—RHIFE

EEREABEME @

(b) BEMS

hEERHBEERE—R(ZTE
NEZR)ARBEFT  EME
B ENRE - R TR (ZF
TRF: ZRA)BEZHEFBE
T

2007 2006
—EELHF —ZTTRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Salaries, allowances and EF - ER R
benefits-in-kind Efth B Al & 2,909 1,459
Performance related BITERR
incentive payments Re 1,387 917
Contributions to retirement 3R K& |5t 2l
benefit schemes Z R 82 36
4,378 2,412
The emoluments fell within the following bands: B < A LA TR A BI A
2007 2006
—EETLHE ZETRF
Emolument bands B < 48 Bl
Nil — HK$1,000,000 # 21,000,000/ JT 1 1
HK$1,000,001 — 1,000,001 JT
HK$1,500,000 Z1,500,0007% JT 3 1

No emolument was paid by the Group to the

directors or any of the five highest paid individual

as an inducement to join or upon joining the

Group, or as compensation for loss of office.

AEEMERESHIAERESFMAL
HApERALZNBE - ARSI EF D
AREBEIRMAREEESRY - K
tERBER A E
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

10. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

ZELF+_A=+—RHIFE

10. FR8BLH (RA) B

2007 2006
—EELHF ZEERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current tax AEZEFIA
Hong Kong BB 2,223 1,837
The PRC H 784 2,165
Other jurisdictions H R A M & 13 11
Under/(Over) provision TR/ (B%5E) BiE
Hong Kong B8 238 (299)
Deferred taxation EREF IR
Current year KEEFE (5,571) (1,767)
(2,313) 1,947

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 17.5% (2006:
17.5%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year.
Income tax on overseas profits has been calculated
on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the
rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which

the Group operates.

EAEFSH IIREFE NG ERE ST
BRHEI175% (ZTTRF : 17.5%) &
GHNE F 2 BB T AR RUE I iR
BASEMEEMIBITCMEGHE o
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

10.

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

(Continued)

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting

profit at applicable tax rates:

=

E_TEE+FE+-_A=+—HILFE

10. FRBH#K (KkA) Bk @)

B RRRERB WA K

2007 2006
—EELHF —TENREF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Profit before income tax B BT 15 %4 A & 17,641 32,254
Tax at the domestic income tax & 2K #b AT 15 71 7 K
rate of 17.5% (2006: 17.5%) 17.5% (ZZTZRF : 17.5%)
TR ZMIA 3,087 5,644
Tax effect of expenses not EIED: 153
deductible BB E 1,182 1,101
Tax effect of income not taxable R % UL A & Tl 75 57 £ (2,511) (328)
Tax effect of profit not %51 0 Al 2 B 7%
chargeable to tax (note) =& (M) (522) (517)
Effect of different tax rates of B E fib Rl A I [E & &
subsidiaries operating in 2B AR 2R
other jurisdictions MR E (849) (1,009)
Tax effect of temporary RERERIEER
differences not recognised 2RISR (2,141) (889)
Utilisation of deferred tax assets f# fH i@ & & R
previously not recognised ZBRETIAE E (45) (1,224)
Overprovision in respect BEFE
of prior year B B B 238 (299)
Others H ity (752) (532)
Income tax (credit)/expense REEZHERGE WA B
for the year (2,313) 1,947

Note:

The profits of certain subsidiaries are subject to Hong Kong

profits tax on a 50: 50 apportionment basis.

A2 M F AR SRR EENE
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

1.

12.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLETO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

Of the consolidated profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company of approximately HK$19,954,000
(2006: HK$30,307,000), a profit of approximately
HK$109,454,000 (2006: HK$25,955,000) has been

dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

HE—

11.

ZELF+_A=+—RHIFE

1 B B R A A5 g R

7R ) AR R FE i 1) 4919,954,0007% 7T
(ZZTZT/NF : 30,307,000 7T) ' EF
#9109,454,000%8 7. (Z 2 T X F
25,955,000/ JT) 2 i A 2 5T A A 7]
MR mE -

DIVIDENDS 12. BE
(a) Dividends attributable to the year (a) TFEERE
2007 2006
—EELHE ZEERF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
Interim dividend paid EIRZEFHREGK
Nil (2006: HK 2 cents) \m(ZEENF 281
per ordinary share — 6,619
Special dividend paid BR 5 R AR B & i
HK 40 cents (2006: Nil) 40BN (ZZETRF : &)
per ordinary share 132,503 —
Final dividend proposed BRKERARESTR
Nil (2006: HK 3 cents) E(ZZTRNF : 38
per ordinary share — 9,929
132,503 16,548

The directors have declared a special dividend of HK
40 cents (2006:NIL) per
HK$132,503,000 which was paid during the year. The
directors do not recommend the payment of final
dividend(2006: HK 3 cents per share)and interim
dividend (2006: HK 2 cents per share) for the year
ended 31st December 2007.

share, totalling

The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet
date of 31st December 2006 had not been recognised
as a liability at the balance sheet date, but reflected
as an appropriation of retained earnings for the year
ended 31st December 2006.

EETHMREFRRE - 8KR0.45T
(ZZZTRF : /) - §5132,503,000
BITWERANFEIRNT - EESEH TR
BHI—ZTT+F+_A=1+—HIF
ERERB(ZZEZ NF: FR2EW)
FAREBRE(ZEETRNE: FR2EMN)

R-ZZERFT-_A=+—H&EAR
BED K RARBIL RNEE B RER
RBE BERRASBEEE_TTNF
TZAZ=T - HLEFEZREAAM -
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=

g

ZLtFE+A=+T—HIEFE

12. DIVIDENDS (continued) 12. BRE (&)
(b) Dividends attributable to the precious financial b) BRE-—HMEEE TRAFE
year, appropved and paid during the year HoE R T2’ B
2007 2006
—EELHF —ETRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Final dividend in respect of —HﬁﬁﬁlirZ?iHﬁH“ =]
the previous financial BRRE BARIE
year, of HK 3 cents (ZEZRF o8 1l)
(2006:HK 6 cents)
per ordinary share 9,938 19,975
13. EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. BR&EF

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based
on the profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company of HK$19,954,000 (2006: HK$30,307,000)
and on the weighted average of 331,138,000 (2006:
331,762,000) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31st
December 2007 and 2006 were not presented because
the impact of the exercise of the share options was

anti-dilutive.

BRERBNTIBBFARRD RS
B AEEEF 19,954,000 (=T F
7NEF: 30,307,000 T) R B BT E
A% 2 hn#E 19 (331,138,000 (= 79?\
4 : 331,762,000) 5t & o

*
&

HRTTERBRE 2 8 ST
WARBINRBE_ZTZTL
TZA=t—-HBLEFEZER
R o

1 A
& A

Nk
B B R

i

Xat
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

HE_ZZLE T _A=+—HILFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. W% - BERRE — X&H

— GROUP
Leasehold
improvements,
furniture,
fixtures and
Factory  Plant and Moulds  equipment
under machinery  and tools £ Motor
Buildings construction By | EE  BH-%  vehicles Total
BT EEEE R#s RIE ERRE hat: a5
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAr Tar FET Tén Far TAr Tén
At st January 2006 R-EExE-A-H
Cost BUAE 129,619 45,221 131,901 154,220 58,510 7020 526,691
Accumulated depreciation  2:f7E (42,383 — (1159920 (137839)  (48,005) (6,253)  (350,472)
Net book amount FRFE 87236 45201 15,909 16,381 10,505 967 176,219
Year ended 31st RZZERE
December 2006 TZAZT-ALEE
Opening net book amount  BA1ER 3 & 87236 45,221 15,909 16,381 10,505 967 176,219
Exchange differences ERES 6,018 118 2,051 979 1,395 - 10,561
Additions hE 9,026 2,097 1,169 12,242 4,895 220 29,649
Reclassification L L] 27705 (43,992) 8,99 14 7277 = =
Disposal HE - - (113) (2) (286) (61) (462)
Depreciation Vi (7302) = (4,469) (7659) 6,215) 396) (26,040)
Closing net book amount  HREKE FE 122,683 3,444 23,543 21,956 17571 730 189,927
At 31st December 2006 R=BERE+ZF=1-H
Cost BUAE 173,919 3,444 146,217 168,137 72,456 6,616 570,789
Accurnulated depreciation 2317 E (51,236) — 12267 (146,181) (54,885 (5,886)  (380,862)
Net book amount ERFE 122,683 3,444 23,543 21,956 17571 730 189,927
Year ended 31st RZZELE
December 2007 TZA=t-A
Opening net book amount  EFIERE F(E 122,683 3,444 23,543 21,956 17571 730 189,927
Exchange differences ERES 739 (122) 1,875 80 2,218 47 11,492
Additions RE = 1438 355 9,260 2,099 948 14,100
Reclassification ENSE - (4,500) 192 — 4,308 — —
Disposal HE - - - - (81) (107) (188)
Depreciation il (7.940) = (2,983) (10,621) (5,006 (442) (26,992)
Closing net book amount ~ EXKEFE 122,137 260 22,982 20,675 21,109 1176 188,339
At 31st December 2007 RZBZtE+-A=+-ALEE
Cost EHAE 184,180 260 152,591 177815 82,049 5,663 602,558
Accumulated depreciation  E:H17E (62,043) — (129,609 (157140) (60,940) (4.487)  (414,219)
Net book amount ERFE 122,137 260 22,982 20,675 21,109 1,176 188,339
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— GROUP (continued)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

An analysis of the carrying value of the Group's

properties is set out below:

= —
4= —

14.

ZELF+_A=+—RHIFE

ME- - BERRE — F5H

(%)

AEEMEZEEFEINAT

2007 2006
—EELHF ZEERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FAET
Buildings situated on land in BEE T M
Hong Kong ZEF
— Under medium-term lease — REIFE A 9,380 10,032
Buildings situated on land 2B 4t
in the PRC ZIEF
— Under medium-term lease — FREFFR A 112,757 112,651
122,137 122,683
Factory under construction on A1 B8 + 3 78 F 4
land in the PRC 2K E
— Under medium-term — FREFFR A
lease 260 3,444
122,397 126,127

At 31st December 2007, the Group's bank borrowings

were secured by the Group's certain buildings with
carrying amount of HK$8,858,000 (2006: Nil).

R=ZEZFtF+=-_A=+—H BALE
B TR HE (88,858,000 7T (ZEZ /N
F B EERAERZBTEER

/\

o
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For the year ended 31st December 2007 HE-_ZTZTLtF+-_A=1+T—HIEFE

15. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS FOR LAND 15. A t##HE — XKE

— GROUP

The Group’s prepaid lease payments for land comprise

land use rights in the PRC and leasehold land situated

in Hong Kong which are held under medium-term

leases as follows:

REBEANIWHESBRATEENZ
RELTMERERFERO LT

2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEL
Leasehold land — leases TR L b —
of between 10 to 50 years MOBT+FERTF
In the PRC a2 30,093 29,102
In Hong Kong BB 14,701 15,036
44,794 44,138
2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Opening net book amount B ) BR S B 44,138 43,703
Exchange differences N =% 1,670 1,427
Amortisation for the year PINEZSE: v (1,014) (992)
Closing net book amount HiRBR M F B 44,794 44,138
2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEL
Analysed for reporting EfRE A&
purposes as: 2
Non-current JER B 43,780 43,145
Current R E 1,014 993
44,794 44,138

At 31st December 2007, the Group's bank borrowings

were secured by the Group’s certain prepaid lease

payment for
HK$13,187,000 (2006: Nil).

land with carrying amount of

W_BTHEF-A=+—0 Bk
B 2 F A+ 078 & AR E A 13,187,000/%
T (CFEAE ) ERRARELR

TEE -
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES — GROUP

All of the Group's leasehold interest in land held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are measured using the fair
value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties. The investment properties were
located in Hong Kong and held on leases of 10 — 50

years.

All of the Group's investment properties are rented

E-ETLFT A=t ALFE

16. REWE — FKH

AEESRBESHAEELERNM
RIFGEHOFB A L HAES
BAVFERE  ARBINRREYE -
BEMEUREZE  BHB10E15
-3

AEBEFMAEREMEENFRZKLEH

out under operating leases during the year. KL -
2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Fair value AFEH
At beginning of the year A 10,300 10,900
Increase/(Decrease) in fair value 2 &0, C& 4>)
recognised in the consolidated R4 4& WK
income statement B2 2,242 (600)
Transfer to non-current assets D HEAFEHEZ
classified as held for sale FERBEE (B 7F25)
(Note 25) (12,542) =
At end of the year M E R — 10,300

On 10th December 2007 the Group entered into an
Agreement of Sales and Purchase with an independent
third party for the disposal of the Group’s investment
properties at a consideration of HK$12,542,400. The
transaction was subsequently completed on 28th
February 2008. The investment properties of the Group
are reclassified as non-current assets held for sale at
31st December 2007 and presented separately in the
consolidated balance sheet in accordance with HKFRS
5. Details of the non-current assets held for sale are

set out in note 25.

ZEELFEFTA+TH  REEFUR
812,542,40078 T H ERNEBE IR E Y
HBVE=FINEE DS ZERS
BEEN—_ZEENF-_BA -+ N\B=K -
R-ZE+FE+-F=+—H AEE
REMFEEN DB RAFHELE ZIERD
BE UWREBERSUBERESERZE5%
BEZINGEEERERT - FHIED
BZERBEEFBEHNME25 -
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES — GROUP

17.

(Continued)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at
31st December 2006, had been arrived at on the basis
of a valuation carried out on that date by RHL Appraisal
Ltd., independent qualified professional valuers not
connected with the Group with appropriate
qualifications and recent experiences in valuation of
similar properties in the relevant locations. The
valuation report was issued by RHL Appraisal Ltd.,
represented by its director who is a member of the
Institute of Valuers. The valuation conformed to HK
Institute of Surveyors Valuation Standards on
Properties, was arrived at by reference to market
evidence of transaction prices for similar properties,
and gave rise to a decrease of HK$600,000 for the
year ended 31st December 2006.

HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS —
GROUP

HE—

16.

17.

ZELF+_A=+—RHIFE

BREYE — X&E8 (®)

FEBEREMER _ZTTRFT_A=
T—HZAFERKMITHERR AR
AERNE AETHHEERERET - %
NERBEANEEY WA 2B LAER
BEMGEERR  BAEEZERIIRNENR
R ETREUMEGEZER - AE
BERKMTHEERERARZES
REZRAPEL REFRMHEMLE
KB - ZEENSHABAEMAE 2
ERE - ND2REUHRZTEXSE
G- HEELABE_TTERF+_A
=t+—RHIEFE 2R E600,000%E T °

ERZEIPAEZRE — XK

2007 2006

—EELHE —ETRF

HK$000 HK$°000

FET FAETT

Unlisted bonds FELEMES — 52,170
Less: Included in current assets & @ sF ARENE E — (8,648)
— 43,522

During current year, the Group's held-to-maturity

investments were fully disposed of.

As at 31st December 2006, the unlisted bonds carried
fixed interest rates and maturing within 7 years. The
effective interest rates on the bonds ranged from
2.76% to 6.17%. The fair value of the unlisted bonds
at 31st December 2006 amounted to HK$51,497,000
was based on the prices quoted by financial

institutions.

RAFE  AEEFAEIHBAZKRE
B ERE -

RZZEEXF+=-_A=+—H LW
BEAFMBEEEFE - R7FRNEE - %
EEFCEBRMENF2.76%%E6.17%
2B BEREHE 2RE  RLWE
ER_BTERE+_HA=+—HBZA¥F
/451,497,000 & T °
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES —

RE-FETtF+-A=+—AIL4E

18. RIBARZRE — ARAF

COMPANY
2007 2006
— —EFER

HK$’000 HK$°000
FET TET
Unlisted shares, at cost FELEMB - ERAE 107,146 107,146
The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, FEWHIB AT IE AmEEMH e AR

interest free and repayable on demand. EREEIEH o
(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31st (a) R-EE+&E+—-—A=+—B=x

December 2007 are as follows:

EMBARFBHOT

Place of Particulars of Percentage
incorporation/ issued share/ of equity
establishment/ registered attributable to
operations capital the Company
Name HEMA L, BRTRE/ KAAFEME  Principal activities
% B i 2 T E AR BRESL FEEK
Held directly EEES
RBI International British Virgin Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
Investment Limited (i) Islands (“BVI") US$30,000 and trading of
XBRZHE 38 A% 30,0003 T securities
REBBREEAEE
Held indirectly MEEs
Dongguan Tai Fat Toy The PRC Registered 100%  Manufacture and
Factory Ltd. F HK$36,800,000 sale of toys
(a foreign wholly- &R SERHENA
owned enterprise) 36,800,000/ 7T
REABTARAERRAA
(2BIERELE)
Dongguan Tungfat Toy The PRC Registered 100%  Manufacture and
Factory Co. Ltd. F HK$55,670,000 sale of toys
(a foreign wholly- it & 455,670,000/ T HERHEETA

owned enterprise)
REREMAHERAA
(ZENEHRELR)
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES —

(a)

HE_ZZLE T _A=+—HILFE

18. RMBARAZKRE—XRQTF

COMPANY (Continued) (&)

(Continued) (@ (#&)

Place of Particulars of Percentage
incorporation/ issued share/ of equity
establishment/ registered attributable to
operations capital the Company

Name HEMKL/ BRTRA/ KAFFEM  Principal activities

% B i 2 T EARFEE BREAt FEEE

Held indirectly (Continued) ¥ H (&)

Motormax Industries The PRC Registered 100%  Manufacture and
(Heyuan) Ltd (a foreign H HK$30,000,000 sale of toys
wholly-owned enterprise) it & 730,000,000/ 7T BEREETA

RREX (TR ARAR
(2E)ERELE)

Motormax Toy Factory Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100,000 100%  Trading of toys

RETABARLA BB L % 100,000 7T BEMA

RBI Industries (Shenzhen) The PRC Registered 100%  Manufacture and
Co. Ltd (a foreign F HK$46,000,000 sale of toys
wholly-owned enterprise) #E 1 & A46,000,0007%8 T AERHEETA

AEEZE(RI)BRAA
(ZENEHRELR)

RBI Toys Inc. United States of Common Stock 100%  Trading of toys

America US$10,000 BEMA
EH £ 3mA% 10,000 T
Red Box Toy Factory Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 100%  Design, trading and
TamEBAERAA B Non-voting deferred (i) marketing of toys
HK$12,000,000 and investment
EEA1,0008 T holding
BEZEELTR (i) &t ERHELHEA
12,000,0007% 7T REEER

Reach Wealth Investment BVI Ordinary US$100 100%  Trading of toys and

Limited RBRIHES EER100% T investment
BEMARKRE

Tai Fat Toy Factory (China) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2,900,000 100%  Manufacture and
Limited (ii) BB Non-voting deferred (iii) sale of toys

RETEAR (PE) HK$5,100,000 HERHETE

BRRF (i)

%38 M2,900,000% 7T
BERERITR (i)
5,100,000/ T
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES —

=

E-ETLFT A=t ALFE

18. RIBRBAZRE — A2 F

COMPANY (Continued)

(@) (Continued)

(i) Operating principally in Hong Kong.
(i) Operating principally in the PRC.

(iii)  The non-voting deferred shares, which are held
by RBI International Investment Limited,
practically carry no rights to dividends or to
receive notice of or to attend or vote at any
general meetings of the respective companies
or to participate in any distribution on winding
up.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the
Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in

particulars of excessive length.

19. INVESTMENT IN CERTIFICATES OF

DEPOSITS — GROUP

The Group's investment in certificate of deposits was

disposed of during the year.

As at 31st December 2006, the investment in
certificate of deposits represent United States Dollars
("US$") deposits placed with banks with an aggregate
principal amount of USD4,000,000 which carry
interests chargeable at certain pre-determined rates
less London Interbank Offered Rate. The bank deposits
would mature from 2009 to 2013 or earlier, when the
interest income accrued on the deposits reaches
certain specified amount. The directors considered the
carrying amount of these bank deposits approximates
their fair value, based on the amounts quoted by

financial institutions.

(%)

(a) (&)

(i), XERBERKE -
(i) EERFELE -

(i) ZEERERELZERH A RBI
International Investment Limited#¥
B FAELERMED EIFEEKER
ERARAIZKRE  MEERKEBAA
RAIZEMBRREAE 2 BENHEEH
AEIRELRE MEIRBEHR
B TERZEEENIIE -

EERR LARBHAINDER
FERAFREZREINBERAKH
TEEEFEZARANEAR
A FHINEMHMB AR ZERS
SHRERBER -

19. EREERE — F&H

AEBEZEARBRERAFALE -

R-ZERFE+-_A=+—8 ' %=

BERERRTRBOIZELER &4
AN 4 4,000,000k T ° ;ZF KA

B AEIBEZMERERBIRITE
ERBIER - RITFEHRER_ZZNE
TE-=FHMIE MR EEERE—
BHES  fJRPIHH -EECRB%R
NEFRZEEERQFERLY %8
e REEIRME -
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20. HELD FORTRADING INVESTMENTS —

21.

= —
4= —

ZELF+_A=+—RHIFE

20 FEZRSERE — A &KH

GROUP
2007 2006
—EBtE —TTA
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET F#ET
Equity securities listed in REE EMZ A
Hong Kong, at market value FH o EME — 236

The Group’s held for trading investments were

disposed of during the year.

As at 31st December 2006, the fair value of the
Group's held for trading investments at the balance

sheet date was determined at their open market value.

AEBZHEZRGRERAFAH

£ o

R-ZEZRF+_HA=+—H K&H
REEBRFEZRZGRENAFENE

RFAMIHERIE °

INVENTORIES — GROUP 21. B8 — A&£H

2007 2006
—EELHF TR

HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Raw materials R 45,831 45,814
Work in progress £ 8 [ 72,559 62,308
Finished goods SURY fh 42,321 57,432
160,711 165,554
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES —
GROUP

ZLtFE+A=+T—HIEFE

22. ESREMERIRIE — F&EH

2007 2006

—ETLHF —ZTTREF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Trade receivables 2 5 e A 64,654 65,213
Less: Provision for impairment & : J& 4 3k 78 36l (B B 4

of receivables (11,118) (9,933)

Trade receivables — net B REWHIE - FE 53,536 55,280

Other receivables H b fE U 3R 476 904

54,012 56,184

The directors consider the carrying amount of trade
and other receivables approximates their fair value.

EZeRRESIREMBEWFEZRE

EEEQXFEBESE -
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ZLtFE+A=+T—HIEFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — 22. B RHEHMEBEWKIE — KEEH
GROUP (Continued) (%)
The Group generally allows a credit period of 30 to 90 AEB—BETEF=TRENLTXE
days to its trade customers. At 31st December 2007, EH RN =Tt FF+_A=+—8"
aging analysis of the Group's net trade receivables, BEERZEAHG  AEEZFE SELK
based on invoice date, is as follows: H2ERESTWAT :
2007 2006
—ETLHF —TENREF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
0 — 30 days 0 £230 X 22,789 14,944
31 — 60 days 31 £60 X 14,309 11,708
61 — 90 days 61 290 X 11,567 19,306
Over 90 days 90 A 4,871 9,322
Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are BRIFEBRAZE Z WA B YA 88
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group MRIE - BRVBERER =6 HARESE
is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in BEAIR o NE A A] B Y AT BEMERIR » Rk
which case the impairment loss is written off against BEeEEANHEBESEIG - BB SR
trade receivables directly. Movements in the provision W2 BEE 2 B8  FIRAT :
for impairment of trade receivables are as follows:
2007 2006
—EELHF —EETRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
At 1st January n—HA—H 9,933 8,398
Impairment loss and BEBBERERBT ABGR
allowances charged to
the income statement 1,185 1,535

At 31st December R+=—A=+—H

11,118 9.3
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES —

GROUP (continued)

The aging analysis of impaired trade receivables was

ZELF+_A=+—RHIFE

ESRHMERRE — AZE

(&)

ERENE S EKK - HiRE D0

as follows: T
2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
Over 180 days 180K A 11,118 9,933

At each of the balance sheet date, the Group’s trade
receivables were individually determined to be
impaired. The individually impaired receivables are
recognised based on the credit history of its
customers, such as financial difficulties or default in
payments, and current market conditions.
Consequently, specific impairment provision was
recognised. The Group does not hold any collateral

over these balances.

The aging analysis of the net trade receivables that

are not considered to be impaired is as follows:

REBHEER  KENESRUEE @5
EMERGRE - @R BRI ZBERR
BEFEEESL (MM BRAERK
R RAETHSARMER - KREXLR
BB % LUK

BRBARBRENE ZERFFREIR
oM

2007 2006

—EELHF —EETRF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Not yet past due KB HA 45,698 49,483
1-90 days past due 28 H1-90K 7,155 4,644
91-180 days past due 2B HI91-180K 274 302
Over 180 days past due 2@ 180K A £ 409 851
53,536 55,280

Receivable that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a wide range of customers for whom there
was no recent history of default, based on past
experience, management believes that impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances
as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balance are still considered fully

recoverable.

HERWFORERORKESL - KBMR
RERER  REAELR  EEEBY
BEBREEERNE RBERKNE
Bl E - BT EFHRBEER
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For the year ended 31st December 2007 HE-_ZTZTLtF+-_A=1+T—HIEFE
22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — 22. ESREMERIRIE — F&EH
GROUP (continued) (#&)
Included in trade receivables are the following amounts PREZBZIERRANIEDEEE 2&
denominated in a currency other than the functional 2 :
currency:
2007 2006
—EELHE ZEERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE T
US$ ETT 49,347 53,598

23. BILLS RECEIVABLE — GROUP

The aging analysis of bills receivable outstanding at

the balance sheet date is as follows:

23.

BRI — AL

RAEE R AR E 2 BRERRE 2T

LU

2007 2006

—EELHF —EETRF

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#ET FET

0 — 30 days 0 £30 X 3,500 3,096
31 — 60 days 31 £60 X 328 1,33
61 — 90 days 61 £290 X 1,098 2,321
Over 90 days 90 XM E 1,096 5,016
6,022 11,767

The aging analysis of the bills receivable that are not

considered to be impaired is as follows:

BRBARBRENEBRE - Eikicm

T

2007 2006

—EELHF —EETRF

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#ET FET

Not yet past due 6,022 11,767

The directors consider the carrying amount of the bills

receivable approximates their fair value.

EERRRUEBRZREEEEQTE

HE -
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23. BILLS RECEIVABLE — GROUP (continued) 23. EWEE — A&£8 &)

24,

Included in bills receivable are the following amounts

denominated in a currency other than the functional

R 5 R 0 2 AT B S LA S ) B9
sHER T -

currency:
2007 2006
—EELHF —ETRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Uss ETT 5,669 11,767
BANK BALANCES AND CASH 24. BITHEERRES
Cash and cash equivalents include the following RekReEEWBEREUATIER
components:
2007 2006
—EELHF —TTRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Cash at banks and in hand RITRFEBES 12,955 8,889
Short-term bank deposits MHRITER 11,083 8,883
24,038 17772

Included in cash and cash equivalents of the Group is
HK$5,156,000 (2006: HK$2,877,000) of cash and bank
balances denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") placed
with banks in the PRC and cash in hand. RMB is not a
freely convertible currency.

The average interest rate of short-term bank deposits
during the year was 3.28% (2006: 4.75%). The deposits
have maturity dates from 7 days to 10 days and are
eligible for immediate cancellation without receiving

any interest for the last deposit period.

TEBHResRR2EENERE
5,156,000 7t (= T & X &F
2,877,000 7T) LA R (AR ]) 5
BEFRAFRAHIRETHRS RIBITA
T UARFERE - ARBATAIBERH
Rz B8 o

RNEFRBABITFRFEHFE AE3.28%
(ZZETXRF 1 475%) - ®#EZE+LHA
ZE+AZEHA Y ARRET RN
et B AN RSy o
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24,

25.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH (Continued)

Included in the bank and cash balances of amounts
denominated in currency other than the functional

currency are as follows:

E-ETLFT A=t ALFE

24, BITHEERRES ®

PATheE &M IASN 2 BB GHE 2 8R1T MR
THEEREFTESIANEAR ¢

2007 2006
) S —EETX

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Uss T 7,126 11,984

RMB AR 5,156 2,877

Bank balance's and cash of the Company are
denominated in HK$ and placed in current accounts in

banks in Hong Kong.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS CLASSIFIED

ARBZRITEFRBAESRAETI
B YHFRREBRITZERPAA -

25. PERFHEHEZERDEE

AS HELD FOR SALE — GROUP — ARH
HK$000
FET
Carrying amount at 1st January 2007 RZEZELHF—-H—H
Z BREE —
Transfer from investment properties (Note16) HEBERIREWE (FiE16) 12,542
Carrying amount at 31st December 2007 RZEE+HF+=-_A=+—H
Z HRHEE 12,642

The directors consider the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties classified as held for sale
approximates the sale proceeds amounted to
HK$12,542,400 as at 31st December 2007.

EERA  AEESEAREHE 2
BYFE 2 AN TFEELEMEHIERS -
R_EE+tEHFE+_A=+—H85A
12,542,400/ TC °
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26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES — 26. EEREMENRIE — XK
GROUP Eq
The aging analysis of the Group's trade payables is AEBEEFENKIEZRE DT80
set out below: T
2007 2006
—EELHF —TENREF
HK$000 HK$'000
TET THET
0 — 30 days 0 230 K 9,578 18,710
31 — 60 days 31 £60 X 6,261 7,699
61 — 90 days 61 290 X 1,792 2,263
Over 90 days 90 KA 435 283
18,066 28,955
Other payables H {th J& {5 2B 10,589 11,418
28,655 40,373
The directors consider the carrying amount of trade EE7AB S NHMENZIEY EEE
and other payables approximates their fair value. BENEERE -
Included in trade payables are the following amounts B 5 < 2038 6 FE R B BA T BE 5 S A SR
denominated in a currency other than the functional éﬁgjpﬂﬁzry\
currency:
2007 2006
—E2EHF —TEREF
HK$000 HK$'000
FTERT THET
uss XL 19 5,685
RMB ARE 7,670 6,756
Trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are BEOENZIER LA —REEA

normally settled on 90-day terms. 90 X -
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27. BORROWINGS — GROUP 27. 6% — AEE

At 31st December 2007, the Group's bank loans were
repayable as follows:

R-ZEZLF+-_A=+—H &&£H
RITERREEHREINOT :

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Within one year 1FE R 3,297 —
In the second year 246 3,438 —
In the third to fifth year 3ELF 11,220 —
Wholly repayable within EERFERNEER
five years 17,955
After the fifth year SE1& 22,045 —
40,000 —
Less: Current portion due JB - —F N E|H
within one year Z BNERER & (3,297) —
36,703 —

As at 31st December 2007, all bank loans were
denominated in HK$ and the bank borrowings bear
floating interest rate at 0.4% over 1, 2 or 3 month
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate. The interest rate
was 4.19% during the year.

At 31st December 2007, the Group had total banking
facilities amounted to HK$144,000,000 in which
HK$40,000,000 had been utilised. These banking
facilities were secured by leasehold land and building
held by the Group and corporate guarantees provided
by certain subsidiaries and the Company.

AZTZELF+A=+—H " FEE
ﬁféfi{ﬂi’]u;’ixaﬂﬁ - FTHDZ B R A
—R=EAEEEERL M4

B FANMER 419% °

NZZEZELFF+_A=1+—H ' A5E
fimﬂé 4 $£144,000,000& 7T * 28
FAE # 40,000,000/ T ° % FRITAME
IASEERFHFZHE L RIEFIEAK
o REEREETHEBARRARA
Rt o
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HE_ZZLE T _A=+—HILFE

28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. A
Number of shares Nominal value
BROEEB HE
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EELF g —ETLE —ZERF
‘000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i + FERT Fi&EL
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares BREEB
of HK$0.1 each 0.1 T
2 Eimk 800,000 800,000 80,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR :
At beginning F 4]
of the year 330,956 333,966 33,096 33,397
Exercise of share 11 R RR A
options 300 — 30 —
Repurchased and BB B % a4
cancelled — (3,010) — (301)
At end of the year F R 331,256 330,956 33,126 33,096
Repurchase of own shares B% 4 Bl 8

There is no repurchase of own shares for the year

ended 31st December 2007.

For the year ended 31st December 2006, the Company

repurchased 3,010,000 ordinary shares over the Stock
Exchange at a cost of HK$3,439,000, which was dealt
with by charging HK$301,000 to share capital,
HK$2,803,000 to share premium, HK$636,000 to
retained earnings and crediting HK$301,000 to capital

redemption reserve.

HIE—ZTZ+F+-_A=+—HIFE
A WREEE -

BIE—ZTZ A F+-A=1+—HIFE
A - AR A BB 3,439,000 JT 7E B X
FriE[E13,010,0000 @M% - BIEZE
B RER AR AR HER 301,000 7T : A
% 15 % (B 7P $0 Bk 2,803,000 7T © R 83
17 5% F & H1 % 636,000/ 70 A R & R
fE [0 7% 1% 7 51 A.301,000/%8 7T °
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 28. R (#)

Particulars of the shares repurchased for the year R EREEET -

ended 31st December 2006 were as follows:

Number of

ordinary shares Total
of HK$0.10 each consideration
#HK0.108 t 2 Highest Lowest paid
LERRAEE 'S B®IK BwRE
‘000 HK$ HK$ HK$'000
AT BT FAETT

Month of 2006 —EEZXREAM
February — A 1,042 1.21 1.20 1,254
May = A 1,968 1.14 1.05 2,185
3,010 3,439
The repurchases on the Stock Exchange were effected ZERBRABREDESSRERER

§
by the directors pursuant to the mandate from EmHT BENARSAARERA
shareholders, with a view to benefit shareholders as Al WmEEEFERESE
a whole by the enhancement of the earnings per share
of the Company.

RAFEARRHERMBE AR SER
B HEHBOAERRFEMLEHES °

None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities
during the year.

BRETS

AR — WA AF+ZA=Z+—B&K
MmEERR TS ([5r8)) TZBMA
MEEREERESREEE 22
R-ZZERF+-_F-+HER - BIF
iTEl - RARESEeMEERKESR

Share option scheme

The Company's share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
was adopted on 21st December 1995 for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible
employees, and had been expired on 20th December
2005. Under the Scheme, options had been granted

to eligible employees, including directors of the
Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares

in the Company.

All the share options under the Scheme which were
outstanding at the beginning of the financial year were
execrised and forfeited during the year. There was no
outstanding share option under the Scheme at the

end of the year.

(BRARBREMNBRARACESR)RT
FERAHE -

AEITZAARAITEZBEREERA
FERNTTERER - RFE - AEER
BREBE T HARITEZBRE -
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Pursuant to a resolution passed on 28th August 2007,
the Company adopted a new share option scheme
(the “New Share Option Scheme”) relating to the grant
of share options to directors, employees and other
participants (the “Grantee"”) including consultants,

advisers, suppliers and customers of the Group.

The directors may specify the minimum period, if any,
for which an option must be held or the performance
targets, if any, that must be achieved by the Grantee

before the option can be exercised.

Share options may be granted without any initial
payment and at an exercise price (subject to
adjustments as provided therein) equal to the highest
of (i) the nominal value of the shares; (ii) the closing
price per share as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotations sheet on the date of the grant of the share
option; and (iii) the average closing price per share as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets
for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of the grant of the share option.

=

g

28.

ZLtFE+A=+T—HIEFE

B (@)
AR AR B ()

BRER-_ZETLFNA-TN\HBRZ
RBER - ARAALAKEZES - B
BREMSEE (BEER - BHA
HEFREP) (FARAD KL BRkE
BR AR — TR 37 BB A HE AT 8 (137 B o =t
gl -

EEUSIEEBRENEITER L AR
BZ&ERE (A kM BER2RIR
BfZ(mAg) -

BRENHANZSEBRERTERE
(AEARXGRE 1 T AFE) (L 912515
HMEE - TEEREATI=EFR 2
Beaa (RO ZEE: (1FREROR
T"ﬁﬁﬁﬂxfk%aﬁﬂﬁi“ﬁﬁlﬁi&f =Ff
w2WTE Ri)BREROREEER
ﬁﬁ%%fwﬁﬁz}ﬂuﬁf & ¥ BB A
BHBERABFZFHKTE -
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 28. B (&)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon the exercise of all options to be granted under
the New Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme(s) of the Company shall not exceed 10
per cent of the share capital of the Company in issue
on 28th August 2007, the date of adoption of the New
Share Option Scheme, unless a refresh approval of
the shareholders is obtained. As at the balance sheet
date, the total number of shares available for issue
under the New Share Option Scheme is 33,126,000,
which represents 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company.

The maximum number of the shares (issued and to
be issued) in respect of which share options may be
granted under the New Share Option Scheme to any
one Grantee in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1 per cent of the share capital of the Company in
issue on the last date of such 12-month period unless
approval of the shareholders of the Company has been

obtained in accordance with the Listing Rules.

The New Share Option Scheme was approved by the
shareholders of the Company on 28th August 2007
and has a life of 10 years until 27th August 2017.

No share options under the New Share Option Scheme
were outstanding at the beginning or at the end of
the financial year, and no share options under the New
Share Option Scheme were granted, exercised,

cancelled or lapsed during the financial year.

BRESTE (F)

R ERETEATEE TREEE
BREmMAEEZRTROZEZ=HE T
BEBR=_ZEZTtFENAZ+N\H (F
MEFERETEIEH) 2 A QR B BT
IR Z210% + HEES AR 2 EFTHLAERR
Hh o REER - RIBFERER IR T
BT 2 1D 428 533,126,0000% @ {6
RAIBETRAZ10% °

WRIBF B AT &) A R E 1218 A 83
BREM —BARAROERE G H
ki &EHE (EBTRETET) TF
HBERERI2EANERE -—BAZAR
NRABEBHTRAZ1%  HERE ETR
A2 MBARBBIR Z ARSI

FERESEENR —_EES+ENA T
NBEXRRRKREH#E - BHI10F -
BEEZE_ZEZ—+tFNAZ+EHAIL -

RAFRERENSER - BEREHER
HEET 8 Z AR M RTTE - MR AR R
FEIYERIFHELE 2 BREE
B 176 EHEEAN
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 28. BRZ& (&)
The following table discloses details of the Company’s T%ﬁf‘f’gﬁ’“ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ%&ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ’%
share options and movements in such holdings: NEB) 2 FFIE
Year ended 31st December 2007 —EELF+-HA=+—HLEE
Number of shares options
BREHA
Outstanding at Outstanding at
1st January Exercised 31st December
2007 during Forfeited 2007
Subscription R-ZZtf the year during RZZZtF
Granted to Date of grant Exercisable period  price per share —-A-8 R the year T=A=1+—H
BF BFAH Gigd: SRABE i K47 (i3 KERKE it K47
HK$
B
Directors 2nd January 2002 1st January 2004 to 11 600,000 (300,000) (300,000) —
31st December 2013
Bz ZTZCF “ZTME-F-HEZE
—AZH ZE-=5+ZRA=1+—H
Year ended 31st December 2006 —EEXNFE+=-HA=+—HLEE
Number of shares options
FEREZA
Outstanding at Qutstanding at
1st January 31st December
2006 Movements 2006
Subscription  RZZEE X i during ﬁ’\*i%ﬁ*i
Granted to Date of grant Exercisable period price per share —R— the year TZA=+—
BT BFEH T8 BRAEE AT 1 ERNED hﬁ%ﬁﬁ
HK$
Er
Directors 2nd January 2002 1st January 2004 to 1.1 600,000 — 600,000
31st December 2013
Bz ZTZCF “ZTME-F-HZE
—AZH ZZ-=%+-A=1+-H
No options were granted, cancelled or lapsed during B —ETER—_EE+E+—A=
the year ended 31st December 2007 and 2006. +—BILEE YEEREST - B

H o R EE -
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29. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

The followings are the major deferred tax assets and
liabilities recognised by the Group and movements

thereon during the current and prior years:

RE-FETtF+-A=+—AIL4E

29. EEWRIBEBEE (AFE)

AT RASEER L TERELEHRBEE
REBEERRBETREEFEZLESY :

Unrealised
profit on
intra-group
Accelerated transfer Other
tax of assets temporary
depreciation EERE differences
bn EB®z H ity Total
HIEFE REF R HEEERE &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAETT FAETT FAEIT FAETT
At 1st January R-ZETRF
2006 —HA—H (2,891) 2,150 1,057 316
Credit to income R =R P
statement FFA
(Note 10) (KraE10) 151 870 746 1,767
Exchange difference fE & =% (347) 48 26 (273)
At 31st December RZZEEZRF
2006 +=—A=+—H (3,087) 3,068 1,829 1,810
Credit to income RURZE R+
statement A
(Note 10) (Kta£10) 3,375 865 1,331 5,571
Exchange difference  [E X =38 295 85 46 426
At 31st December R +F
2007 +=—A=+—H 583 4,018 3,206 7,807
2007 2006
—EELE ZETRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FAETT
Deferred tax assets BEERIRE E 9,954 4,596
Deferred tax liabilities BT H A (& (2,147) (2,786)
7,807 1,810
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29. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 29. EEBHIEBEEE (BE) @)
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(Continued)

At 31st December 2007, the Group had unused tax
losses of HK$43,016,000 (2006: HK$31,984,000)
available for offset against future profits. Deferred tax
assets have been recognised in respect of
HK$9,709,000 (2006: HK$6,370,000) of such losses.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of the remaining HK$33,307,000 (2006:
HK$25,614,000) due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses
are losses of HK$24,609,000 (2006: HK$24,160,000)
that will expire from 2008 to 2027. Other unused tax

losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

R_ZETL+F+-_F=+—0H X&EH
REARBEEBEAREERREZF B
43,016,000 oL (= T T X
31,984,000 ) - MEMBEBZE
R ZIEENIEE E /9,709,000 T
(ZZTZT /N4 : 6,370,000 7T) ° T~
#) 33,307,000 T (Z T X F
25,614,000 7T) © BT EERETE H R
Hom A 2 85 - MR B R EIEL
RIBEE - HRRREERABRZHBE
824,609,000 5t (=Z T XN F -
24,160,000 L) KR ZZEENFEZ
T LFEm - Hitv R EABIBEBEA
ERHAEE o
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the excess of the carrying value of the subsidiaries
acquired over the nominal value of the Company'’s

shares issued.

BRARREETRG
B -

30. RESERVES 29. f##E
Company KA F
Capital
redemption Proposed
Share reserve Contributed final  Retained
premium X surplus  dividend profits Total
Bkx EE#%E BHEH EEER  EREAN a5t
(Note)
(i3
HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FE F# FEL
t 1st January 2006 RZET 5-A-H 98,757 5,902 100,635 19,975 20,902 246,171
Profit for the year FRET — — — — 25,955 25,955
2005 final ERE-_ZSTHE
dividend paid (Note 12) RERE (HizE12) - — - (19,975) — (19,975)
Repurchase of BRIk G
own shares (2,803) 301 — — (636) (3,138)
2006 interim BRE-_TZT E
dividend paid (Note 12) ﬁPHﬂﬁx g (fizt12) - - - - (6,619) (6,619)
2006 final dividend “ITRERE
proposed (Note 12) KBRS (Fiz12) — — — 9,929 (9,929) —
At 31st December 2006 RZZTRE
+ZR=1—H 95,954 6,203 100,635 9,929 29,673 242,394
Profit for the year EERA — — — — 109454 109,454
2006 final BRE-ZEAF
dividend paid (Note 12) REARE (HizE12) — — — (9,929) (9) (9,938)
Exercise of BERH
share option 300 — — — — 300
2007 Special BEREZTELE
dividend paid (Note 12) RHRE (Fa12) — - — —  (132,503)  (132,503)
At 31st December 2007 i
+ZR=1—H 96,254 6,203 100,635 — 6,615 209,707
Note:  The contributed surplus of the Company represents fiar - BEBBEFRRERBARZEE

EHEZ
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ZELF+_A=+—RHIFE

31. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS RERNEAERZH
AND ARRANGEMENTS
Group REH
The Group as lessee AEEHZAEAN
2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Lease payments paid under AKEERELH
operating leases in respect FIEFEERLY
of land and buildings Btz
during the year 2,300 2,469

At the balance sheet date, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of
land and buildings which fall due as follows:

REER  NEEREBRTIIHRE
mZ Lt RBF AR BEEEERN 2R
BHEBEAENAT

2007 2006

—EELHF —TTREF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAETT

Within one year —F R 2,006 2,589
In the second to EFE_EZRF

fifth year inclusive (BiEERME) — 2,778

2,006 5,367

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable
by the Group for overseas offices and warehouses.
Leases are negotiated for an average term of two to
three years and rentals are fixed during such period.

REANESEAKRERBIMNERE
EREMNZES -BAHNTFHAR-E=
FHERBHEESHE -

&
F
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31.

32.

=

= —
4= —

PELET-A=t—RILFE

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 31. KREHRNARERZH (©)
AND ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)
Group (Continued) AEB (A)
The Group as lessor AEBEHBHEA
Property rental income earned during the year was FABRER 2P S WA F522,000%
HK$522,000 (2006: HK$429,000). At the balance sheet TL(ZZTEREF : 429,000 1) ° &
date, the Group had contracted with tenants for the BH AEBEBERZAL  HA%
following future minimum lease payments: =EBRLLOT ¢
2007 2006
—EELHF ZEERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Within one year —F RN — 517
Company ¥ NN
The Company did not have any significant operating RZZEZE+F+_A=+—H8 ' K27
lease commitments and arrangements at 37st WA EARB L EE (ZEERNF
December 2007 (2006: Nil). ) o
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 32. EAXRALE
Group REH
2007 2006
—EELHF ZEERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Capital expenditure in respect B %% 4918 & #2 5
of the acquisition of property, ZIEBEME - BE
plant and equipment REHEERMERAX
contracted but not provided for 3,186 5,730

The Company did not have any significant capital
commitments at 31st December 2007 (2006: Nil).

R-ZETLE+-_A=1+—H K27
Y mEMERBEARE (CEEAF -
m) o
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33.

34.

SE

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

For the year ended 31st December 2007, the Group
and the Company had no significant contingent
liabilities (2006: Nil).

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

The Company has executed guarantees amounting to
approximating HK$142 million (2006: HK$38 million)
with respect to general banking facilities granted to
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Under the
guarantees, the Company would be liable to pay the
bank if the bank is unable to recover the loan. At the
balance sheet date, no provision for the Company's
obligation under the guarantee contract has been made
as the directors considered that it was not probable
that the repayment of the loan would be in default.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Key management personnel compensation:

Remuneration for key personnel of the Group, including
amounts paid to the Company's directors and certain
of the highest paid employees as disclosed in note 9,
is as follows:

=

= —
4= —

33.

34.

g

ZELF+_A=+—RHIFE

FREE

REIE=FTLF A=+ —ALF
g ARBYEEAEARARME (S
FERET ) ¢

=

MBRREN

RABBARBETHEBRARER 2 —
RERITE K - MIRITE D RARIERLY
142,000,000 ;t (Z T ZT X F
38,000,000/ 7T) ° RIEER + HIRIT
REEWEIER - AR R ERERRITS
NRFZEE - REEB - ARESR
B RZE R 2 A RGN - B S
EAREAHNE T ZADREEF EHE
1 o

EXBBRS

EEBEAESMHE

TEEBAEZHE (BEALKRARE
ERETERHEEINZEEH) #R
BEE9 @ AR

2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FEL
Salaries, allowances and % R REAM
benefits-in-kind B & 7,944 6,410
Performance related BRIEXRRES
incentive payments 2,895 8,663
Contributions to retirement RIRAE FI 5T 8 2 4 3K
benefit schemes 271 256
11,110 10,219

The remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note
8). There is no other material related party transaction
for the year ended 31 December 2007 (2006: NIL).

HWeC BREBRITRAAR R E
8) - HE_TTLF+_A=1—
H REHMEABERS (ZF
TRNEF HE) o
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

HE_ZZLE T _A=+—HILFE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks
which result from both its operating and investment
activities. The Group does not have written risk
management policies and guidelines. However, the

board of directors meets periodically to analyse and

formulate strategies to manage the Group's exposure B

to market risk, including changes in interest rates and H'CHM
currency exchange rates. Generally, the Group =IEIKFE ©
introduces conservative strategies on its risk B H

management. The Group’s exposure to market risk is

B 5L -
B ERR RS -
BERNY P IT R SRR

MERBEREBERBEE

AEEHREERNETDEE LR
RER B 8 E I E R
Rl EFEEH

LAE IR AR

E.EE&Z%U%&[T“@J M5 R

C ANEE B R R B ER AR AN

'%$§l2m%ﬂ AR TE
REEWEERAEEHITEL
ftb TEAES R 2 A o REB
ARSEMNMBAEXNETITESRT

kept to a minimum. The Group has not used any A o

derivatives or other instruments for hedging purposes.

The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial

instruments for trading purposes.

Credit risk FEER K

The Group's exposure to credit risk is limited to the AEEEE 2 EERBRAELE B E
carrying amount of financial assets recognised at the WRZUBFEEZREE - HEHT W
balance sheet date, as summarised below: s ¢

2007 2006

—EELEF —EERF

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FET

Trade and other receivables g 5 & H b e W R IE 54,012 56,184

Bills receivable FE U = 1% 6,022 11,767

Bank balances and cash WITHEGF LIRS 24,038 17,772

Held-to-maturity investments BHEZHHAZ2KE — 52,170
Investment in certificate FRFBEEE

of deposits — 26,794

84,072 164,687
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its
trade and other receivables and bills receivable. The
amounts presented in the balance sheet are net of
allowances for doubtful recovery of receivables
estimated by management based on the age of the
debts,
worthiness, management's prior experience and their

their knowledge of customers’ credit-
assessment of the current economic environment.
Management reviews the recoverable amounts of
significant trade receivables regularly to ensure
adequate allowances for doubtful recovery are
recognised if considered appropriate.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by
geographical locations is mainly in North America and
Europe, with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties and customers.

The credit risk on the Group's bank balances and cash,
held-to-maturity investments and investment in
certificate of bank deposits is limited because the
majority of the counterparties are banks or corporations
with high credit ratings.

Currency risk

The Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in
foreign currency exchange rates relates primarily to
certain trade receivables and certain cash and cash
equivalents in currencies other than the functional

currency.

Foreign currency sensitivity

Most of the Group’'s sales and purchases to/from
foreign countries are carried out in US$ and RMB.
Exposures to currency exchange rate arise from the
Group's overseas sales and purchases, which are
primarily denominated in US$ and RMB.

=

= —
4= —

36.
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ZELF+_A=+—RHIFE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. BXEREEEEREEK &)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Currency risk (Continued) E¥ERK (&)
Foreign currency sensitivity (Continued) IME B ()
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at TERETKEE BB HMEERET
the balance sheet date to a reasonably possible change g mETRARBEXRAELESGE
in the US$ and RMB exchange rates against HK$ of BB (EEREERBEBEZAFAELR
+5% and -5% (2006: +5% and -5%), with effect from HE) BRI BEIT+5% K -5% (=
the beginning of the year, with all other variables held TEXN: +5%K-5%) ' EXERFY
constant, of the Group's profit after income tax and M - NEBEINR TSI R A g Fl
retained profit (due to changes in the fair value of 58 1 0 5% B 2 BURK M
monetary assets and liabilities):
Increase/ Increase/
(Decrease) in  (Decrease) in Increase/
foreign currency profit after (Decrease)
exchange rates income tax in retained
I FE BE & HMBRETBHL profit
tH %= 7 i & 4
(Tre) #m CR2) Ei GR2)
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAEIT FAETT
2007 —EBBLEHF
Uss ETT 5% 2,563 2,563
Uss ETT (5%) (2,563) (2,563)
RMB AR 5% (104) (104)
RMB AR (5%) 104 104
2006 ZEBEBAEF
USs$ ETT 5% 6,223 6,223
USs$ ETT (5%) (6,223) (6,223)
RMB AR 5% (160) (160)
RMB AR (5%) 160 160
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. EKREEBFERBE #)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from
borrowings. The following table illustrates the
sensitivity of the profit after income tax for the year
and retained profit to a reasonably possible change in
interest rates of +1% and -1% (2006: +1% and -1%),
with effect from the beginning of the year. These
changes are considered to be reasonably possible

based on observation of current market conditions.

M=k

AEBFXEH 2 EREERGEE -
TR AT AT R KR F R =
AREER+1%E- 1% (ZTT XN F ¢
1% N-1%) 2EBFEE 2 HEME - 8
FHRBER - BIBERITM SRR 2
BR 2S8R ATNERECZEE
2y o TEIBRBEASERSEEBAT
A ZRITERIEL - FTEEmEER

The calculations are based on the Group’s bank Brg .
borrowings held at each balance sheet date. All other
variables are held constant.
Group
AEE
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EBLEHF T REF —EELF —EERF
+1% -1% +1% -1%
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FET F#ET FET
Profit after income tax Fr8Fi %
(B51|)
il (330) 330 — —
Retained profits st 7| {5 8 (330) 330 — —
Liquidity risk Bt B B

The Group carefully monitors the cash flow on day-to-
day basis. The Group maintains sufficient cash to
finance the operation of the subsidiaries in Hong Kong
and overseas. The Group has cash flow generated from
operating activities amounted to HK$39,037,000 (2006:
HK$28,293,000). To meet short term cash shortage,
the Group makes use of the credit facilities provided

by bankers.

AEBEBHEVERRESRE - A5H
BERRZEE @ UWEEEEREING
BRARAIZELRHBASRHE - X&H
EXBEEETI 2RSS RE R
39,037,000 Tt (= & & X F
28,293,000 7T) - A& EF AHRITIE
HeEERA  UBRBEHAS 2T
E o
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities

as at the balance sheet date, based on the contracted

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

RE-FETtF+-A=+—AIL4E

3. BXEAREEEEREE &)

B MR ()

RESORTESR  AREHBEE
REEB ZEMBEREINOT -

Group rEHEH
3to
less than
Less than 12 months Over
On demand 3 months 3fAZF 1to5 years 5 years Total
RERE TH8B3EA ©EB1208A 12565 5 E &3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAET FATL FET FAETL FAET
2007 “EBLE
Trade and other payables ~ B SR Eft
JE I 50R 435 28,220 — — - 28,655
Accruals B E R — 16,197 — — — 16,197
Bank borrowings RITEN — 811 2,486 14,658 22,045 40,000
435 45,228 2,486 14,658 22,045 84,852
2006 —EERE
Trade and other payables B 5 R EH A
JE 1 5038 283 40,090 — — - 40,373
Accruals st &R — 20,156 — — — 20,156
283 60,246 — — — 60,529
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

RE-FETtF+-A=+—AIL4E

3. BXEAREEEEREE &)

Liquidity risk (Continued) REBERKE (&)
Company PN
3to
less than
Less than 12 months Over
On demand 3 months 3fAZF 1to5 years 5 years Total
REXE TRBE3MEA BE12@A 125F SENE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FAT FET FAETL FET
2007 ZERLF
Trade and other payables ~ B SR Eft
FEf 508 — 9 - - - 90
2006 ZERAF
Trade and other payables ~ B SR EAb
FET 508 — 175 — — — 175

Fair values

The fair value of interest-bearing borrowings is
estimated as the present value of future cash flows,
discounted at current market interest rates for similar

financial instruments.

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets
and financial liabilities are not materially different from
their fair values because of the immediate or short

term maturity of these financial instruments.

AFE

EEEENAFERRBERKEELR
BUERTANREHSMNEHRERE
PRt & o

RN % EF S B T A1 /506 2 8 5 /8
NEH BAKREHNBEERMBAR
ZEEEREEQFERE -
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For the year ended 31st December 2007 HE-_ZTZTLtF+-_A=1+T—HIEFE
36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT BRREEBEERBE 8
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Summary of financial assets and liabilities by RENESZHBEEERABEHNE
category
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets AEEMFEERBEZREBERRN
and liabilities are recognised as follows. See notes T e ﬁfaiﬁﬁlﬂzﬁﬁwm—]%%ﬁfﬁ
3.12 and 3.19 for explanations about how the category ZFrE - B2 RMFE3.12%3.19°
of the financial instruments affects their subsequent
measurement.
(i)  Financial assets (i) BIBEZE
2007 2006
—EELHF —EEREF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAETT
Loans and receivables B3 % e W8
Trade and other 2 5 & E e Bk 54,012 56,184
receivables
Bills receivable Z IR e W SR IE 6,022 11,767
Bank balances and cash $RiT&FNIRS 24,038 17,772
84,072 85,723
Available-for-sale AHHEZHMIEEE
financial assets
Investment in certificate TFRBFEE
of deposits — 26,794
Held-to-maturity BEEZIEHAZ
financial assets W EE :
Held-to-maturity BEZIBHAZEE
investments — 52,170
Financial assets at HEEEZAFE
fair value through BAER
profit or loss \
Held for trading BFAEZRSEE
investments — 236
Total financial assets R EE 84,072 164,923
(ii)  Financial liabilities (i) BMBERE
2007 2006
—EELHF —EEREF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAETT
Amortised costs B 5H KA
Trade and other payables  Z 5 & H fb fE [ 5K 1E 28,655 40,373
Accruals g 16,197 20,156
Bank borrowings IRITIE X 40,000 —
Total financial liabilities MBBERE 84,852 60,529
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37. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES
AND PROCEDURES

The Group's capital management objectives are:

(i)  to ensure the Group's ability to continue as a

going concern;

(i)  to provide an adequate return to shareholders;

(iii) to support the Group's stability and growth; and

(iv) to provide capital for the purpose of potential

mergers and acquisitions.

The Group sets the amount of equity capital by
reference to its overall financing structure. The Group
manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions

and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.

ET+FE+_A=+—HIEFE

37. EXEERRRERF

AEEZEARAEERER

() HWEAEEZAHELE

(i) MRREHREERR

(i) TRHAEEZREHRER K

(iv) BABETZAHRKBREHRE

AEELEEERERBOESEN

ZEF o REBERBELEMNRR “E&ﬁ

HEEZRARBHUEEARBETER
I EHFRHE
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37. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES
AND PROCEDURES (continued)

The net debt-to-adjusted capital at the balance sheet REEE R

ZELF+_A=+—RHIFE

37. EXEEBERRRERF (#)

B2 R EFEREHEE R0

A= o
date was as follows: T
2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Current liabilities mE A E
Trade and other payables 2 5 K& H M E N FRIE 28,655 40,373
Deposits and accruals GREETER 37,892 35,576
Borrowings EE 3,297 —
Tax payable J& 1~ 72 78 1,231 591
71,075 76,540
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Borrowings & & 36,703 —
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIEAE 2,147 2,786
38,850 2,786
Total debt (EE R 109,925 79,326
Add: Proposed dividend Y/ Y 4N — 9,929
Less: Cash and cash equivalent & - RERREEFEY (24,038) (17,772)
Net debt B8 85,887 71,483
Total equity i gk 395,390 503,959
Less: Proposed dividend B R IR B — (9,929)
Adjusted capital A R 395,390 494,030
Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio BEREHERABRE R L= 22% 14%
38. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS 38. EEEEXRBEEHE
On 28 February 2008, the Group disposed of its ZEZENEFAZ+NH  AEEH
investment properties to an independent third party %Txﬁ%%&ﬁj% CHEHR2EBA

at a cash consideration of HK$12,542,400.

12,542,400/ JT °
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RESULTS ¥E
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
—2T=F —TTNF —TTHF —TIEF ZETLtHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE& T FET FAET FET FETT
Revenue WA 573,705 583,085 539,688 550,154 525,902
Profit before income tax Ff 15 %% Al Ji Fl 99,630 58,434 46,044 32,254 17,641
Income tax (expense)/  FiS &R/
credit (M) (11,586) (6,352) (5,169) (1,947) 2,313
Profit for the year A% R EAG
attributable to F A a
shareholders 88,044 52,082 40,875 30,307 19,954
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EENREE
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
—2T=F —TTNF —TTHF Z—TEF ZBETLtHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE& T FET FET FET FETT
Property, plant Y - BE
and equipment B 215,342 146,657 176,219 189,927 188,339
Prepaid lease TEAF L b
payments for land Gishcra — 39,864 42,723 43,145 43,780
Investment properties & WE 4,400 7,500 10,900 10,300 —
Held-to-maturity HAEZE A
investment ZIEE 46,835 63,578 53,050 43,522 —
Investment in certificate F R BEE
of deposits 15,600 31,200 26,794 26,794 —
Deferred tax assets RIEFIEE E 5,300 4,663 4,501 4,596 9,954
Net current assets MENE EFRE 280,821 252,557 181,696 188,461 192,167
Bank borrowings RITEE — — — — (36,703)
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBA G (3,677) (3,450) (4,185) (2,786) (2,147)
Shareholders’ funds BRES 564,621 542,569 491,698 503,959 395,390
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